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sTATEivurNTOFMAI\.AGE}HNT'SRESpor`'sHBILITy
FOR cO.`'soi.rDATED Fin.ANciAL sTATEMENTs

SEcuRlrlES Ar`-D EXCH.i.`'GE Co.`iMISslo`~
SEC  Building.  EDSA Greenhilis
Mandalu}'ong Cit.\..  \.tetro Manila

The   management   of  Belle   Corporation   and   Subsidiaries   is   responsi6le   for   the   preparation   and   fair

presentation  of the  consolidated  tlnancia!  statements  for  the  }rears  ellded  December  31.  2013  and  20]2.
including  the  additional   components  amached  therein.  in  accordance  with  Philippine   Financial   Reporring

Standards.   This   responsibi!it}'   includes   desLming   and   implememing   intcmal   controls   relevam   {o   the

prepant]on   and   fair  presenlation   of  the   consolida(ed   financial   statements   that   are   frog   from   material
misstatement  \`h€ther  due  to  fraud  or  elTor.  selecting  and  appl}ing  appropriate  accoulrring  policies.  al`d

making accounting estimates lhat are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors re`ie\`s and appro\'es tile consolidal€d financial  statements and submits the sane to
tlie stockholders.

S}Cip  Comes  Vela.\o  &  Co.`  the  independent  auditors.  appointed  b.\`  the  stoctholders  has  e.qT`ined  the

cousolidaied  financial  statements of the Compaji}r  in accordance with  Philippine Standards on Auditing. and

!n  Its report to the stcekholders. has e.xpressed its opinion on the  fairness of presentation upon completion of

such e.\aninaton.

ENITO TAN GUAT
haiman ot`the Board

DERIc.,erDyBUNclo

MANUEL
Executi\`e  1

and Chief fi,h.ancjal Officer

Signed this 8th da}J of March`  201 i

5th  Floor Ti,`i.``..I .(+. T\``` I;-Com Ci.Ti`.`r.  Palm Coast .\` .mu...  \1uli o`-,\.:3  Complcx. C`BP.i.\` Pn>j>  C``:`'  .  T¢l. (`f`2-8SSS  .  l``a.i:  66:.S)`)l'I



rviAKATi  c!Ty

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this _th. day of _ 2014 affiants exhibit!ng to me
their CTCITIN/Passports.  as follows.I

NAME                                  CTcmN/Passport No.  DATE OF ISSUE              PLACE OF ISSUE

Beriito Tan  Guat                 Passport#  EA0000168    December  15   2009          DFA Man!la
TIN#  101-935-043

Fredericc.  DyBuncio      Passport# E80923285   September 10.  2010        PCG san  Francisco
TIN#  103432.824

Manuel A,  Gana
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CTC# 34219223
TIN# 906-105409

January  13.  2014                 Manila

`Tony pubilc
Lintil  31  December 201.1

Ron No. 41934
'lR h'o. 4236044; 01/09/14: M!±kati Gt}'
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SycipGorresvelayo&Co         Tel   (632)  0910307
0760 Ayala ^venue                         Fax   (632) 819  o872
1226 Makali  city                              ey. com/ph
Ph,I,pp,nes

INDEPENI)ENT AUDITORS ' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Belle Corporation
5th Floor, Tower A
Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue
Mall of Asia Complex, CBP-I A, Pasay City

BOAIPRC  Reg.  No.  o001.
December 28,  2012`  valid  untll  December 31,  2015

SEC  Accredjtallon  No.  0012-FR-3  (Group A),
November  15,  2012,  valid  iintil  November  16.  2015

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Belle Corporation and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Res|}ousibtlity f ;or the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is rcspousible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management dctermines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whcther due to fraud or error.

A uditors ' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.   We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.   The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fimncial statements,
whether due to fraud or erl.or.   In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers interml control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation Of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit prcocdures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes
evaluating tbe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financ ial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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OI,inton

h our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Belle Corporation and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and their
financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013  in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

*angTng?corn
Partner
CPA Certificate No.  86898
SEC Accreditatioa No. 0779-AR-I  (Group A),

February 2, 2012, valid until February  I, 2015
Tax Identification No.  129434-867
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-67-2012,

April  Ill  2012, valid until April  10,  2015

PTR No. 4225188, Januny 2, 2014, Makati City

March 8, 2014
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BELLE coRpoRATloht Ar`'D sL'BslDIARIES
co}'soLII)ATED sTATEMENTs OF FI.`.AI\.clAL poslT|Or`'   -` -T -~`'
(Amounts in Thousands)

Decem ber 31,
2013

December 31.
2012

rAs restated  -
\'o'e:,)

Januar\   I.
2b!2

(As  restated  -
\,o:e3\

•|SS£TS
Casli  and Cash Equi`'alents

C`.otes  8, 3:`. 37  and  3 8)

Short-term  ln`.estment5 I:`'oles  8,  37 and  38)

Recei`'ables  (``oles  9,  33, 37 and  38)

SLlbscription  Recei`.ables (`'otes 23  and  38)

Finance  Lease Recei`.able (`.otes 3 i  and  34)
Real Estate for Sale -at cost

(\'otes  10.  i9, 20  and 38)

Club Shares -al cost \\-o!es  I I ,19,  3:`  and  38)

ln`.¢stments  in  and  Ad\.ances  to  Associates -\'et

(`.otes  12,19,  21,  23.  :`3,  3?.  :`8  and  39)

Held-to-matLirit}. Im estments
C`.otes  13, 33  and  37)

A`.ailable-for-sale  Finalicial Assets
(`.ot¢s  14 and  57)

Advances to Related  Parties . Net
C`.ot¢s 33, 37  and  38)

lI``.estment Properties  (`'otes  15,  21, 31  and  34)

Propert.\. and Equipment (\otes  16 and 27)

lntanglble ASset (`.otes  I?,  34  and  39)

Escrow  Fund (`7otes 2 I ,  33,  =`4  and  37)

PensioTI  Asset C\'otes :`  and  32)

Other Assets  (`'otes  16.18,  21  and  50)

Fl.170.396                      Pl:J}9:7l I

965

I,210,787                         I,352,972

9,752,212

3,S92,276                          2,901`335

2.810.221                           2:812.6j2

978,016                          I,883;059

750.000                            750,000

I,773,793                                 28.6!9

1 I,S87                            J82`J69

2.9S8,707                         5,584,824

176,014                                  160,283

5.261,186                         5,26L186

2,064.450

12,5ls                                      1,643

I,096.138 758,28j

P2`766.880

9.668

930.12i

2,082,920

3 ,036, I 5 3

2`786,148

2, I  18. I 66

22j36

j5|?6<
I.i:.i.!9J

ITS,599

5.261. i s6

3,568

562.390

P31.SS3.818                  P25,462,442                  P22,647,096

Ll.ABILITIES.1`'DEQl:ITY.

uabili'ies
Loans  pa.v.able G`'otes  19,  33,  37  and 3S)
Accounts p2}`able and  other liabilities

(`'o[es  10, 20, 33,  37 and  38)
Income tax pal.able h'Qte 30)
Long.tern debt (\'o[es 21, 33  and 37)
`'ontrade liability (\.ate 22)
Estima:ed  liability` on consmction  costs

(\'otes  I 5.  :` I  and  34)
Deferred tax  liabili:ies -net r\.ote  30)
Assignment of recei\ abtes with recourse

3?  and 38)Ol.ores  9,  33

F200,466                      P2,081.714                      P2,155,857

2,469,85Z                          I,869:808                         I,750,935
416                                    8,258

I,S02,800                        4,719.165                         2,559,584
J,000,000

2.247,567
836.S30

89.549

16?.9i4                              89.045

6,563,679Total  Liabilitles 11,346,764 8,839.047

(For`+lard)
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Deceml)er 31,
2013

Decembei. 3 I,
2012

(As restated -
Note  3

January I,
2012

(As restated -
Note 3)

Equity
Attributable to equity holders of the parent:

Preferred stock - issued (Notes 23 and 33)
Common stock (Note 23):

Issued
subscribed

Additional paid-in capital a`lotes  17 and 23)
Equity share in cost of Parent Company shares

held by associates (Note 23)
Cost of Parent Company common and

preferred shares held by subsidiaries
(Note 3 and 23)

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial
assets -net (Notes  12`  14 and 30)

Retained earnings (Note 23)
Other reserves (Notes  12 and 32)

Excess of cost over net asset value of an
investment

Pl'000,000                  Pl ,000,000

10,559,383                     10,5 59 ,3 83

5,503,731                       5,503,731

(2,Sol)                       (731,696)

Pl ,000.000

9,170,770
I,388,613

5,503,731

(73 I.696)

(2,257,631)                      (5 62 ,3 75)                      (497,758)

(190,785)
4,533,666

21£86

252,040

14,868
893,813

(I,225)

8,585
338,093

(43,874)

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent                                                                                                       19,419,289                     16,6 7.6,499                     16,136.464

Nor-controllin interests                                                                           787,79S                          (53 ,104 (53,047)
Total E 20,207,084 16,623,395                     16,083,417

848                P2 5,462.442               P22,647.096

See accompanying Note.s I.i Cnmolidaled Financial Slalemenus.
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BELLE CORPORATION ANI) SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended December 31
2012                                   2011

(Asrestated-        (Asrestated-
2013

REVENUE
Interest income on finance Lease (Note 31)
Terminaticm income (Note 34)
Sale of real estate and club shares
Lease incoine Ovote 31)
Revenue from property management

otes 9 and 24

pi,177,570                      r                      I-
949,608
175'280
157'136
105,033
59,620

323,563
18,427
95,272
57.171

520,176
62,070
97,530
95,574

2,624,247                   494,433                   775,350

cOsT OF REAI. ESTATE AND cLun sHAREs
SOLD 0Vote 25)

COST 0F SERVICES FOR PROPERTY
MANAGBMEIFT quote 26)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
avotes  16, 27, 31, 32 and 33)

DAY I GAIN ON FINANCE LEASE
0Votes  15,  31  and 34)

GAIN ON SHARE SWAP (Note  12)

EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS 0F ASSOCIATES
0,ote  12)

INTEREST EXPENSE INotes 9,  19, 21, 28 and 33)

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN a,OSS) (Note 21 )

INTEREST INCOME (Notes 8, 9,13, 28, 33 and 34)

GAIN ON LIQUIDATING DIVIDEND
(Notes  12,  15  and 39)

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) - Net
Notes 9,  12,16, 29 and 33

(115,389)                   (117,152)                  (235,983)

(60,269)                   (72.943 )                   (78,829)

(642,642)                (275,45 0)                (233 ,065)

2,324,434

772,247

119,940                    288,730

(103,852)                   (128,151)

(86,167)                     (36,718)

56,112                        116,453

539,671

140,484

(158,160)

270

28,498

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX                                              4 713                      713 809                    225

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 30)
Curent
Deferred

305,577                        79,154                        15,972
952                       78,992                          7,758
529                      158,146                        23,730

NET INCOME                                                                                   3 184                    555 663                     201

(Forward)
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Years EDded December 31
2012                                  2011

(As restated-        (As restated-
Note 3)                      Note 3)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME qoss)
Items to t)e reclassified to profit or loss in  subsequent

I,eriods,
Unrcalized gain (loss) on av`ailable-for-sale financial

assets of associates (Note  12)
Unrealized gain (loss)  on available-for-sale  financial

assets - net

(F8,560) P46,3 62                 (P24,47 7)

6,283                           8,585

52,645                      (15,892)

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods,
Remeasurement gain (loss) of defined benefit asset

Notes 3 and 32 4.116 3,713)                              998

TOTAL coMPREHENslvE INconus FOR THE
YEAR                                                                                            P3,426087                 P604,595                 P187,03 I

Nct profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (Note 36)
Non-controllin interests

P3,639,8S3                 P5 5 5 ,720                 P201,982

(3,669)                             (57)                            (57)
184                  P555,663                  P201,925

Total comprehensive income attributablc to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controllin interests

P3,429,756 P604,652 P187,088

087                 P604,595                 P 18 7,03 I

Basic/Diluted Eamin s Per Share Fo.352                     ro.o54                     ro.o24

See accompanying Noles to Consolidated Finonci.]I Slaleirlents .
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BELLE CORPORATION ANI) SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 0F CI]ANGES IN EQUITY
FOR TEIE yEARs ENDED DEcaMBER 3i, 2oi3, 2oiz AND 2oii
(Aimunts lD Thousands)
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BELLE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31
2012                               20„

(As restated -              (As restated -
Note 3)                        Note 3

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Income before income tax
Adjustments for:

Day  I  gain in finance Lease a`Totes  15.  3 I
and 34)

Interest income on finance Lease (Note 31)
Gain on share swap (Note  12)
Equity in net €amings of associates (Note  12)
Interest expense (Note 2 8)
Unlealized foreign exchange loss -net
hterest income O{ote 28)
Gain on sale of:

Property and equipment (Note 29)
Investment QVote  12)

Depreciation and amortization
(Notes  16 and 27)

Amortization of discount on trade receivables
(Notes 9 and 24)

Pension costs (Notes 27 and 32)
Provision for (reversal of) allowance:

Probable loss on other assets (Note 29)
Doubtful accounts
lmpaiment loss on advances to associates

(Notes  12, 29 and 33)
Imparment loss on adva[Lces to related

parties avotes 29 and 33)
Gain on liquidating dividend

(Notes  12  and  15)
Dividend income

Working capital adjustments :
Decrease (increase) in :

Receivables
Real estate for sale
Club shares
Other assets

Increase in accoui]ts payable
and other liabilities

P4,969,713                       P713,809                       P225,655

(2£24,434)
(1,177570)

(112.241)
(119,940)                      (288,730)

103.852                               128, L51

86,167                             37,325

(140.484)
158,160

31

(56,112)                        (1 L6,453)                           (28,498)

(72,026)                                (612)

34,939

(32,280)
5,318

4,418
352

(10,234)

30,926                             27,059

(29,392)
4,992

(368)

10.633

2,121

(539,671)
(272)

2,S56,864
(690.941)

2,421

(331.509)

(374,550)
134,818

(26,494)
( 183,951 )

(54,465)
3,371

(278)

246,136

(23,257)
30,294

(207,420)

140,557                            184,607

Net cash generated from (used for) operations
Interest received
Income taxes paid
Contributions lo the retirement fund Note 32

(1£28,871)
lfl4'806
(325,601)

(357,161)
97.547

(86,996)

410'677
23,105

(7.714)

Net cash rovided b used in activities 417,696

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2012                                          2011

(As restated -              (As restated -
2013                                Note 3

CASH ELOWS FROM [NVESTTT\'G
ACTIVITIES

Expenditures on investment properties (Note  15)
Decrease (increase) in :

Escrow fund (Notes 33 and 34)
Investments in and advances to associates

and related parties
Short-term investments

Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment (Note  16)
Held-to-maturity investments (Note  13)

Dividends received
Proceeds from disposal of:

Property and equipment (Notes  16 and 29)
Investments in an associate (Note  12)

(P I,088,349)                (P2,07 7 ,813)                (P 1,940,949)

2,064,4SO                     (2,162 ,loo)

463,014
965

(41,821)

76,294

(46,356)
7,017

(27,185)
(750,000)

272

612

(19,123)

(9,668)

(24.200)

44,692

25,L25

Net cash rovided b investin activities                     I,474,553                     (5,055,553)                   (I,924,123)

CASII FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Payments of:
Loans payable
ln'eres'
Assignment of receivables with recourse

Prcceeds from :
ABLGI advance
Availment of loans and assignment of

receivebles with recourse
quotes  19 and 21)

Stock rights offering (Note 23)
Increase (decJ.ea se) in advances from related

(5,250.037)
(135,586)

4,000,000

229'941

(94,143)
(117.054)

2,222,318
2,082,920

(37L,868)

(140,783)
(5.027)

2,379,855
2,368,log

31,283)                                 I,874

Net cash rovided b used in) financin activities 4,062,758                      4,232,159

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH E UIVALENTS 607                                  96

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQurvALENTs
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(249.315)                    (I,347,169)                      2,725,828

711                       2,766,880                             41,052

CASH ANI) CASII EQUIVALENTS
AT ENI) OF YEAR 396                   Pl,419,7l I                   P2

See aceornpanying lvotes lo Consolihaled Flnancial Slalonen{s.
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BELLE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I.    General Information

CorDorate Information
Belle Corporation CBelle" or "Parent Compady') is a stock corporation organized in the
Philippines on August 20,  1973 and was listed at tile Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on
Febmary 2,1977.  The businesses of Belle, direct and through subsidiaries and associates, include
mainly real estate development, principally in the high-end leisure property market, and various
investment hoLdings.

The registered office address of Belle is 5th Floor, Tower A, Two E{om Center, Palm Coast
Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, CBP-I A, Pasay City.

Authorization of the Issuance of the ConsoLida(ed Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statelnents were authorized for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the 13oard of Dhectors (BOD) on March 8, 2014.

2.    Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

Basis Of PreDaration
The consolidated financial statements have been pre|)ared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets that have been measured at fair value
(see Note  14).  The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the Parent
Company's functional and presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indica`cd.

In addition, the Company presents an additional statement of financial position at the begiming of
the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements.   An additional
statement of financial position as at January I, 2012 is presented in the consolidated financial
statements due to retrospective application of certain accounting policies (see Note 3).

Statement of collroliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards a'FRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Behe and the following
subsidiaries (collectively refined to as `1he Company') that it controls:

Percenta e of ownershi
Subsidiaries                                                                             2013                               2012                               2011
Bell:BBe:rep::;ap?::)o.r.ation

Colossal Constmction Corporation"
Metr&P#;tfant;#!ueandTourism

(Fc)rward)

ili[IilliilliliiiNIi\iiNIuniiiiliiiiiilun
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Percenta e of ownershi
Subsidiaries 2013                                      2012                                      2011

Parallax Resources, Inc. (Parallax)
sLYSDLe#.o.Pmen'Corpora'ion

Premi umLeisure and Amusement,
Inc. (PLAI)

BeLJeh:.i:€:]eR%Sr°a:dcee)F°Ldfn8S>

High(]finGdc?,a.rdenscorporation

Sinophil Corporation (Sinophil).'.

loo

loo

100

100

80
58

loo

loo

loo

80

loo

loo

loo

80

*  Incori}oraled in Decelrlber  2013
** Non-operaling
+** Effiec(ive ormership inleresl

The subsidiaries  are all incorporated in the Philippines.

The subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
ColTpany using consistent accounting policies,  All significant intercompany balances,
transactions, income and expense and profits and Losses from intercompany trausactious are
eliminated in full in the consolidation.

3.    Changes ln Accounting policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of the following new,
revised and amended Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), PFRS and Philippine
Intepretatious from lnternational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (ITRIC) which
were adopted as at January  I, 2013.  The adoption of the following amendments and
intelpretatious did not have material effect on the accounting policies, financial position or
performance of the Company, except for additional disclosures.

•     PAIs I. Presentation of Financial slalemenls -Presenlalion of llems of other comprehensive

/#come or OC/ (Amendments) - The amendments to PAS  I  introduced a grouping of items
presented in OCI.   Items that will be reela§sified (or "recycled") to profit or loss at a future
point in time (for example, upon dereeognition or settlement) will be presented separately
from items that will never be recycled.   The amendments affect presentation only and have no
ilxpact on the Company's financial position or performance.

I      PAS  19, Emp/a+jeeBc.#e//a (Amendment) -On January  I, 2013, the company adoptedthe
PAS  19, Emp/a.yes J}e#e//s (Revised).

For defined benefit plans, the PAS  19 a`evised) requires all actuarial gains and losses to be
recognized in other comprehensive income and unvested past service costs previously
recognized over the average vesting period to be recognized immediately in profit or loss
when incuned.

l"mmllllllmillllllllmllllllllllll"lll
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Prior to adoption of the PAS  19 (Revised), the Company recognized actuaTial gains and losses
as Income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized gains and lasses for each
individual plan at the end of the previous period exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets and recognized un`.ested past service
costs as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average vesting period until the benefits
become vested.   Upon adoption of the PAS  19 (Revised), the Company changed its accounting
policy to recognize all actuarial gains and tosses in other comprcheusive income and all past
service costs in profit or loss in the period they occur.

The PAS  19 (Revised) replaced the interest cost and expected return on plan assets with the
concept of net interest on defined benefit liability or asset which is calculated by multiplying
the net balance shect defined benefit liability or asset by the discount rate used to measure the
employee benefit obligation, each as at the beginning of the annual period.

The PAS  19 (Revised) also amended the definition of short-term employee benefits and
requires employee benefits to be classified as short-ten based on expected timing of
settlement rather than the employee's entitlement to the benefits.   In addition, the PAS  19
(Revised) modifies the timing of recognition for terlnination benefits.   The modification
requil.es the temination benefits to be recognized a( the earlier of when the offer cannot be
withdrawn or when the related restructuring costs are recognized.

Changes to definition of short-term employee benefits and tiring of recognition for
termination benefits do not have any impact to the Company's financial position and fimncial
performance.

The changes in acco`inting policies have been applied retrospectively.  The effects of adoption
on the financial statements are as follows:

December 3l,         December 31,                January  I,
2013                              2012                              2012

(1n Thousands)
Increase (decrease) in:
Consolidated statements of

financialoosition+
pension lial)iLfty
Pension asset
Defnd tax asset
Defnd tax liability
Oothercomprehensiveincome-

net of tax
Retained earnings

(P1,841)
12,515

(552)
3,754

8'898
1'152

(P5.272)                    (P8 ,3 54)
1,643                             3,568

( I,582)                        (2,506)
493                              I,071

4,7 82                          8,495
59                                 (150)
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For the Years Ended December 31
20113                                    2012                                    2011

(ln Thousanals)
Consolidated  statements of

comorehensive income
GGeneralandadministrativee-es
income tax effect
Profit for the year
Remeasurement gains (losses) of

defined benefit obligation -
net of tax

Basis earnings per share

all,561)
468

I,093

4,116
0.002

(P298)
89

G}2.093)
628

209                           I,465

(3,713) 998
0.001

The adoption did have not impact on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

I      PAS 27 Sepc]m/e Fi.#a"c!.a/S/a/emeo/§ (as revised in 20l I) -As a consequence of the new

PFRS 10, Consolidated Firlancial Statements, zlndpFR:S \2, Disclosure Of Interests in Oil.er
En/j/i.es, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities (JCEs), and associates in separate flnancial statements.  The amendment did not have
an Impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

-      PAS 28, /"ves/men/s /.H 4ssoc`i.a/es ancJ/oi'#/ re#twres (as revised in 2011) -As a consequence

of the new PFRS  I I, /oj#/ Arra"gemeHts,  and PFRS  12, PAS 28 has been renamed FAS 28,
/#ves/menfs !.# j4ssoci.c7fcs owdJoi.Hf ye7?"r€£, and describes tbe application of the equity
method to investments injoint ventures in addition to associates.   The amendment will have
no Impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

•      PFRS 7 , Financial  lnslnlme:nls:  Disclosiires  -Qf f lsetting Financial Assets and Finarlcial

4f.ob/'//'//'es (Amendments) - The amendment requires an entity to disclose information about
rights of set-off and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements).   The new
disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set-off in accordance
with PAS 32, Ft.Hanc/.c]/ /"s/r]ime7./i... Prgse#/¢//.o#.   These disclosures also apply to
reeoghized financial iustrunents that are subject to an enforceable master netting alTangement
or `similar agreement', irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32.
The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format, unless another format is more

appropriate, the following minimum q`rantitative information.   This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:

a.     The gross amounts of those recognized flnancial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b.    The amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining

the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
c.     The net amounts presented in the statement offinancial position;
d.    The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:

-      Amounts related to recognized financial iustnrments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32: and

-      Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and

e.    The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.
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The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Company's financial

position or performance.

I      PFRs  lo -PFRs  lo replaces the portion ofpAS 27, Couso/i.c7a/ec7a#d5apcma/e Fj.#cmcl.a/

S/a/emen/5, that addresses tbe accounting for consolidated rmancial statements.  It also
includes the issues raised in Standing lnterprctatious Committee (SIC) -12, Co#so/idcr//.o# -
Spec;fl/ Pwrpase E#/I.fl.es.  PFRS  10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities  including special purpose entities.   The changes intrc)duced by PFRS  10 will  require
management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled. and
therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that
were in PAS 27.

•      PFRS  11  -PFRS  11  replaces FAS 31, /H!eresrs j.# /oj.#/ ye#/I/res and SIC-13, /oi.Hj/y-

controlled Entities -Nonmonetary Contributions by Venturers.  PER:S +I removed the orfuon
to account for JCEs using proportionate consolidation.   Instead, JCEs that meet the definition
of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method.   The application of this new
standard will have no impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

I      PFRS  12, -PFRS  12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity's interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. The requirements in
PFRS  12 are more comprehensive than the previously existing disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries (for example, where a subsidiary is controlled with Less than a majority of voting
rights).   PFRS  12 affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Company's financial

position or performance.

•      PFRS  13, Fai.r  yo/i/a Meas!/reme"/ -PFRS  13 establishes a single source of guidance under

PFRS for all fair value measurements.   PFRS  13 does not change when an entity is required to
use fair valu.`, but rather provides guidance on how to mcasur.. fair value under PFRS.
PFRS  13 defines fair value as an exit price. PFRS  13 also requires adtlitional disclosures.   As
a result of the guidance in PFRS  13, the Company re-assessed its policies for measuring fair
values, in particular, its valuation inputs suck as non-performance risk for fair value
measurement of liabilities.   The application of PFRS  13 affects disclosures only and has no
Impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

1     Philipp.m€ ln:herp[e`a`ton[FRIC 20, Stripping costs in the produclion phase of a surf uce Mine
- This interpretation applies to waste removal (Stripping) costs incured in surface mining
activity, during the production phase of the mine.   The interpretation addresses the accounting
for the benefit from the strii]ping activity.   This new interpretation is not relevant to the
Company.

The 4##wa/ /mproveme#/s (o PFjts (2009-2011  cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PFRS.  The Company adopted these amendments for the current year.

I     PA:S  I, Clarif icalion of the requirementf tor comparative inf ormation -These a:me:[rdm!en:ts

clarify the requirements for comparative information that are disclosed volulitarily and those
that are mandatory due to retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in the financial statements.   An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the minimum required comparative period  The
additiona`l comparative period does not need to contain a complete set of financial statements.
The amendment did not have an impact on the Company`s financial position or performance.
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1     P A;S 16, Propert,il. Plant and Equipment -Classif a:ation of servicing equipment -The

amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and ser`'icing equipment should be
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise.   The amendment did not
have an impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

I     PAS 32. Tax ef iect of distrib.{tion to holders of equity instr.Iments -The aimendmeut ch[ifiies
that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to transaction costs of an
equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS  12, Income rczi-es. The
amendment did not have an impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

I     FAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting -Irllerimf inancial reporting and segment irif brrralion

/or /a/#/ asse/s a#d /I.abi./I.fi.es -The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for
a particular reportable segment need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change from the
amount disclosed in the entity's previous annual financial statements for that reportable
segment.   The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Company's
financ ial position or performani`e.

•     PFRs  I , Fi.rs/-/i.me Ac/apfj.om a/PFRS -Borrou7.ng car/s -The amendment clarifies that, upon
adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowiflg costs in accordance with its previous

generally accepted accounting principles, may calTy forward, without any adjustment, the
amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial position at the date of
transition.   Subsequent tl the adoption of PFRS, borrowing costs are recognized in accordance
with PAS 23, J}orrow.I.Hg Costs.  The amendment does not apply to the Company as it is not a
first-time adopter of PFRS.

4.    Future changes in Accounting policies

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when
these become effective.   Except as otherwise indicated. the Company does not expect the adoption
of these new and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

I      Amendments to PFRS  10, PFRS  12 and PAS 27 -/Hves/me#/E#//.//.es.  These amendments are

effective for annual periods beSnning on or after January  I, 2014.  They provide an exception
to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of-an investment entity
under PFRS  10.  The exception to consolidation requires investment entitles to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

1      PANS \9, Ernployee Benef ils -Def ined Benef it plans:  Employee contributions (Am!oudmR:atsj).

The amendments apply to contnbutions from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans.   Contributions that are sat out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as
reductions to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service.
Contributions that are discretionary shall be accounted for as reduetious of current service cost
upon payment of these contributions to the plans.   The amendments to PAS  19 are to be
retrospectively api)lied for annual periods begirming on or after July  1, 2014.
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-     phs 32, Of isetting Financial Assets and Financial Lial)ililies (Arne:ndmen\s) -The
amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014.   The amendments clarify the meaning of"currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off' and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to
settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous.

-     PAS 36, Impairment of Assets -Recoverable Amount Disclosures fclr Now-Financial Assets

(Amendments) -These amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January  I, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided PFRS  13 is also

applied.   These amendments remove the uhintended consequences of PFRS  13 on the
disclosures required under PAS 36.   In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the
recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which impairment loss
has been recognized or reversed during the period.

•     FAS 39, Financial Instruments:  Recogn:ition and Measurenewi -No`iation Of Derivatives and
C`o#/;.in/a/i.o# c)/JJedLge ,4cco"#/i.wg (Amendments ) -These amendments arc effective for
armual pedods beginning on or after January  I, 2014.  These amendments provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a denvative designated as a hedging
instrument meets certain criteria.

•      Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS  10, PFRS  12 and PAS 27) -These amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2014.  They provide an
exception to the cousolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity under PFRS  10.  The exception to consolidation requires investment entities
to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

-      Philippine Interpretation lFRIC 21, £ev/.es (IFRIC 2l) -IFRIC 2l is effective for armual

periods beginning on or after January  I, 2014.   IFRIC 21  clarifies that an entity recognizes a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant
legislation, occurs.  For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold. the
interpretation clarifies that no  liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum
threshold is reached.

I      PFRS 9, F/.Ha„c/.a/ /#s/rl/me7I/a PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first and third phases of the

project to replace PAS 39 and applies to the classification and mcasurement of financial assets
and liabilities and hedge accounting, respectively.   Work on the second phase which relate to
ilxpairment of financial instruments, and the limited amendments to the classffication and
measurement model is still ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its entirety.   PFRS 9
requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition.   A debt financial
asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.  All
other debt iustr`rments are subsequently measured at FVPL.   All equity flnancial assets are
measured at fair value either through OCI or profit or loss.   Equity financial assets held for
trading must bc measured at FVPL.  For liabilities designated as at FVPL using the fair value
option, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in OCI.  The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in
I)rofit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change relating to the entity's own credit
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risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.   All other
PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for  financial  liabilities have been carried
forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative bifurcation rules and the cri(eria for
using the FVO.   The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Company's financial assets, but will potentially have no
impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory eifective date.   PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and
impairment methodology.  The Company will not adopt the standard before the completion of
the Limited amendments and the second phase of the project.

I      Philippine Interpretation lFRIC  15, ,4greemeutrfer ire cous!7.DfcfroH a/Recr/ Estate -This
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors.  The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract quahifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS  I I
or involves rendermg of sea/ices in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
completion.   Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and
where the risks and reward of ownership are transfelTed to the buyer on a continuous basis
will also be accounted for based on stage of completion.   The Secunties and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the
effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue
standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.

TThe Company continues to assess the impact of the above new, amended and inTproved accounting
standards and intelpretatious effective subsequent to December 31, 2013 on its consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application.   Additional disclosures required by these
a~manendmentswillbeincludedintheCompany'sfinancialstaternentswhentheseamendmentsare
adopted

Annual lmorovemelnts to PFFRS /2009-2011 cvcle`
This contains non-urgent but necessary amendments to PFRS.  The Colnpany adopted these
amendments in the current year.  The Company does not expect these amendments to have
significant impact on its financial statements, unless otherwise stated

-     PER:S l, First-time Adoption of PFRS -Borrowing costs

1     PA;S \, Presenlalion of Financial slatemenls -Clarif ilca[ion of lhe Requiremenls f or

Comparal ive lrformalion.

-     PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment -Classif ilcation of servicing Equipment.

•     PA;S 32, Financial Instruments:  Presentalion -Ta:x Ef iect Of D.Istribution lo Holders Of Equity

lnslrumen[s.

•      PAS 34,1nteriln Financial Reporting -1nlerim Financial Reporting and segment lrforrrlation

Jtor Total Assets and Liabilities .
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Annual  lml)rovements to PFRS (2010-2012 cvcle`
The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 cycle) contain riori-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

-PFRS 2, Share-based payment -Def i.nition of ves(ing condition.  The amendment revised (he
definitious of vesting condition and market condition and added the definitions of
performance condition and service condition to clarify various issues.  This amendment shall
be prospectively applied to shareLbased payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
after July  I, 2014.

-     PFRS 3, Business combinativus -Accounlingf or contingent consideration in a Business
Gc»7!bjma/fen.  The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the
definition of a financial instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 32.    Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the
scope of PAS 39.  The amendment shall be prospectively applied to business combinations for
\which the acquisition date is on or after July  I, 2014.

•     PFRS 8, Operating segments -Aggregalion of operating segments and Reconciliation of the
Total Of the Reporlable Seginenls I Assets lo the Eritity's Asse(s.  The am:e;nd"eats [ec|iine
entities to disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating two or more operating
segments.   This disclosure should include a brief description of the operating segments that
have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have been assessed in
determining that the aggregated operating s egments share simi lar ecorromic c haracteri sties.
The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide reconciliations of the total of the
raportable segments' assets to the entity's assets if such amounts are regularly provided tl the
chief operating decision maker.   These amendments are effective for annual periods bt3giming
on or after July  I, 2014 and are applied retrospectively.

-     PFFrs  13 , Fair Value Measilrement -Short-term Receivables and Payables.  The a:ne:name:[I:I

clarifies that short-term receivabLes and payables with no stated interest rates can be held at
invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.   This amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after July I, 2014.

-     PA;S \6, Properly, Planl and Equipment -Revalunl.Ion Method -Proportionate Rleslatemenl of
j4ccii+mi/o/edDqprec/¢//om.   The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the asset shall be a¢usted to the
revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the following ways:

a.    The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a mamer that is consistent with the revaluation
of the canying amount of the asset.  The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b.    The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendment is effective for armunl periods beginning on or after July I, 2014.  The
amendment shall apply to all revaLuations recognized in annual penods beginning on or after
the date of initial api)lication Of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period.
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-      PALS 24, Related Party Disclosures -Key Management Personnel.  The amendlT\en`s cla[rty

that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or any member or a

group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel services to the reporting
entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity.   The amendments also clarify that a
reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity (also referred
to as management entity) is not required to disclose the compensation paid or payable by the
management entity to its employees or directors.  The reporting entity is required to disclose
the amounts incurred for the key management persomel services provided by a separate
management entity.  The amendments are effective for annual periods begirming on or after
July  I, 2014 and are applied retrospecti\rely.

-     PAIS 38, Intangible Assets -Revaluation Method -Proportionate Restatement of Accilmulated
4»iorffac]froH.   The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of.an intangible asset, the
carrying amount of the asset shall be adiusted to the revalued amount, and the assct shall be
treated in one of the following ways:

a.     The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the reval`ration
of the carrying amount of the asset.  The accumulated amortization at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
canying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment tosses.

b.    The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendlnents also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carl)ring amount accounted for
in accordance with the standard.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July  I, 20 L4.  The
amendments shall apply to all revaLuations Tecogniaed in annual periods bednning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding amual
period.

Annual lmorovements to PFRS /2011-2013 cvcle`
The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

-PER:S I, Firsl-lime Adoplion of phil`Ippine Financ.ial Reporling standards -Meaning of

Ejrec//ve PFIRS.   The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a cument
standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that pemits early application,
provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
entity's first PFRS financial statements.  The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July I, 2014 and is applied prospectively.

1     PFRS 3. Business combinations -Scope Exceptions f tor Joint Arrangements.  The irmendme;ut

clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement
in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself  The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July  1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.
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I      PFRS  13, Fc7/.r yci/we Weaswreme#! -Par//a/i.a Excep/i.o#.   The amendment clarifies that the

portfolio exception  in PFRS  13 can be applied to  rinancial  assets,  financial  liabilities and other
conti.acts.   The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July I, 2014
and is applied prospectively.

-      PAS 40, /westwe#/ Prayer/}J.  The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3

and FAS 40 when classifying proiterty as investment property or owner-occupied property.
The amendment stated that judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business
combination within the scope of PFRS 3.  This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July  I, 2014 and is
applied prospectively.

5.    Summary of significant Accounting policies

CashandcashEEauivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.   Cash in balks earns interest at the prevailing bank
deposit rates.

Cash equivalents are shorttemL highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturity Of three months or less from date of acquisition and are
subject to an insignificant risk Of change in value.

Financial Ass ets

DCJte a/Jzac.ogrj/fo# a/fYfJ7crt7cjcJ/ 4sisets.   The Company recognizes financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
Of the instmment.   Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on
settlement date, i.e., the date that an asset is delJvered to or by the Company.

/»//jcz/ J2ecqg77///o» a/F1/77ai7cwh/ Assets.  Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus,
in the case Of investments not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) directly attributable
transaction costs.

ca/qgor/es a/Flj/7a/?a/al 4jisets.   Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.   The Company determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and where allowed and apprqpTiate,
re-evaluates sueh classification every financial reporting date.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has no firmncial assets designated at FVPL aml
derivatives designated as hedging instniments.

I      Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivable§ are nenderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active nrarket.   These are not entered into with the intention of
immediate or shortrterm resale and are not designated as financial assets at FVPL or AFS
finane ial as sets.
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This category includes the Company.s cash in banks and cash equivalents, short-term
Investments,  receivables,  advances to associates as shown under "Investments  in and advances
to associates" account in the consolidated statement  of. financial position,  advances to related

parties and escrow fund (see Note 37).

•     HTMlnvestments

HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
I)ayments and fred maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity.   When the Company sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM financial
assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS financial assets.

The Company's investment in SM Investments Corporation (SMIC) retail bonds is classified
as HTM investment as at December 31, 2012 (see Note  13).

I      AFS Financial Assets

AI.`S financial assets are those nonderivative financial assets that are designated as AFS
financial assets or are not classified as FVPL, loans and receivables and HTM investments.
The Company designates financial instruments as AFS if they are purchased and held
indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

This category includes the Company's investments in quoted and unquoted equity securities
shown under "Available-for-sale financial assets" account in the consolidated statement of
financial position (see Note  14).

Sztdsegwe#f A4ecaswreme7j/.   The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

•      Loans and Receivables

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amc)rtized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method less any allowance for impairment.   Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the
loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization

Process.

I      HTM investments

After initial mcasuremerit. these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method, less impairment in value.   Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR.

I      AFS FinancialAssets

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealized
gains or losses recognized as a separate component of other comprehensive income in the
cons olidated statement of comprehensive income and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity until the investment is derecognized or determined to be im|)ailed, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss is reeognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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AFS financial assets in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market` or derivatives linked to such equity instruments are measured at cost because its fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

The Company evaluated its AFS financial assets whether the ability and intention to sell them
in the near term is still appropriate.   When the Company is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management's intent significantly changes to do so in the
foreseeable future, the Company may elect to reclassif}/ these financial assets in rare
circumstances.  Reclassificatlon to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial asset
meets the definition of loans and receivables and the Company has the intent and ability to
hold these assets for the foreseeable future or maturity.  The reclassificatLon to IITM is

permitted only when the Company has the al)ility and intent to hold until the financial asset
matus accordi ngly.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the AFS financial assets category, any previous gain or
loss on that asset that has been recognized in other comprehensive income is amortized to

profit or Loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest method.   Any difference between the new
amortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life Of the
asset using the effective interest method   lf the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in the consolidated statement of changes in equity is
reclassified to the profit or loss in the consolichted statement of comprehensive income.

Where the Company holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to
be disposed of on a moving average basis.  Interest earned on holding AFS financial assets are
reported as interest income using the effective interest rate.   Dividends earned on holding AFS
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement Of conprchensive
income when the right to receive payment has been estabhehed.   The tosses arising from
impairment of such finalicial assets are recognized in profit or loss in consolidated statement
of conxprchensive income.

Finaneial Liabilities

Da/e a/J}ecogr"/o7i a/F;;7av7c'ffl/ 4/abf/#i.es.   The Company recognizes financial liabilities in the
consolitlated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the I;ontractual provisions
of the instrument.

Initial Recogni(ion Of Financial Liabilities.   Firm:neial \.\i\hhi\Iies are [ecogrized Lnitia.I+y at fair
value of the consideration received which is determined by reference to the transaction pricc or
other market prices, and in the case of other financial liabilities, inclusive of any tlirectly
attributable transaction costs.   If such market prices are not reliably dcterminable, the fair value of
the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using
the prevailing rrmket rates of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

Gczlqgor/es a/Ffnaioc/fl/ i/cfb;/i.//es.   Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
FVPL, other find,ncial liat7ilities which are measured at amortized cost or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.  The C`ompany determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition and \where allo`ved and appropriate, re-
evaluates such classification every financ ial reporting date.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has no financial liabilities as at FVPL and
derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

iiliprmiiiNIIilll]IIilil!miiiiilnilunIAiil
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Other financial  liabilities are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception
of the  linbllity.   This  includes  liabilities arising from operations  (e.g., accounts payable and other
current  liabilities).

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, this categcny includes the Company's loans payable, accounts

payable and other liabilities (excluding customers'  deposits, statutory payables and other liabilities
to the government) and long-term debt (see Note 37).

Stidseq!/er?/ A4bcrswrew7e#f.   After initial recognition, other finaflcial  liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.   Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss in the consolidated statemeut of comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized
as well as through the amortization process.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offiet and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if; and only if there is a currently enforceablc right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is inlention to settle ori a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

DDeterminationofFairvalue
The fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities traded in active markets at reporting date
is based on their quoted market price or dcaler price quotations (bid price for long positious and
ask price for short positions) without any deduction for transaction costs.   When current bid and
asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the
culTent fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances
since the time of the transaction.

For financial assets and financial liabilities where there is no active market, ex.cept for investment
in unquoted equity securities, fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions; roference to the current
market value Of another instrument, which is substanhaLLy the same; discounted cash flow
analysis; and options pricing models.   h the absence of a reliable basis for determining fair value,
investments in unquoted equity securities are carried at cost, net of impairment.

The Company uses the fullowing hierarchy for determning and disclosing the fa.ir value of
financial assets and financial liabilities by valuation techique:

•      Level  I : quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

I      Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have significant effect on the recorded

fair value are observal)le,  either directly or indirectly; and,

-      Level 3: techniqus which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

Fair value measurement disclosures are presented in Note 37.

Amortized Cost of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
AAmortized cost is computed using the EIR method less any allowance for impairment.  The
calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acqusition and includes transaction
costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

lllmiiiliimimmuiii"imiiiiiiilii
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"Ihav  I " Difference

Wvhere the transaction price in a ronactive market is different from the fair value Of other
chsermble current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables iriclude only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
bbetween the transaction price and fair value (a "Day  I" difference) in profit or loss in the
consolida(ed statement of comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other
type of asset.  In cases where use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between
the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated
statemeflt of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or `when the instrument is
dderecognized.  For each transaction, the Company dctermines the appropriate method of
recognizing the "Day  I" difference arrLount.

Classification of Financial Assets and Finanncial Liabilities Between Debt and Equitv
A financial asset and financial liability is classified as debt if it provides for a contractual
ochligationto:

I      deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or
I      exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Company; or
•      satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial

asset for a fixed number Of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

IrmairmentofFinancialAAssets
The Conxpany assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaire(I if and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
`loss event') and that loss evelit has an impact on the estimated future cash flows Of the financial

asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.   Evidence of inxpairment may
include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where obserwhble data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial Assels Carried al Amorlized Cost.  For iinancta\ i\sscts cained at zrmoctized cost, the
Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individiially or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant.   If there is objecti\re evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value Of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.   The carrying amount of the financial assct is reduced through use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.   Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the effective interest rate of the asset.
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If it  is determined that no objective evidence of impalrment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset  is  incl`rded in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics  and that group of financial assets  is collectively assessed for
impairment.   Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The Company provides an allowance for loans and receivables which they deemed to be
uncollectible despite the Company's continuous effort to collect such balances from the respective
customers.  The Company considers those past due receivables as still collectible if they become

past due only because of a delay ori the fulfillment of certain conditions as agreed in the contracl
and not due to incapability of the customers to fulfill their obligation.   However, for those
receivables associated with pre-terminated contracts, the Company directly writes them off from
the account since there is ne realistic prospect of future recovery.

1| in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impaiment loss is reversed`  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent
tthat the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Af;:S Fjj»ai?cia/ As\sets.   For AFS equity investments, the Company assesses at each reporting date
whctheT there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.  The
evidence of impairment for equity securities classified as AFS financial assets would inch)dc a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value of investments below its cost.   Where there is
evidence of impairment, the c\rmulative loss -measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the currmt fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in the other comprehensive income - is removed from other coixprehensive income
and recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment tosses on equity investments are not rcvcrsed through the profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incolne.   Incrcases in fair value after impairment are
recognized directly in other comprchensive income in the cousolidated statement Of
comprehens ive income

Finonf."/ 4s\se/ Gc]iir/ed dr Cos/.   If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
uunquoted equity instrument that is not camed at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
mneasured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
ununquotedequityinstnunenthasbeenincurred,theamountofthelossismeasuredasthedifference
bbet`veen the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
didiscounted at the currmt market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

IDerecomitionofFinancialASTssetsandFinancialLiabilities

Flinar7c/a/ As.self.   A financial asset (or, where applicable, a palt of a financial asset or part Of a

group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

I      the corxpany's right to receive cash flows fromthe asset has expired; or

I      the company retains the right to receive cash flows fromtbe asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a "passihrough"
arrangement; or
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I      the conipany has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfemed control of
the asset.

W/here the Company has trausferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a "pass-tbrough" arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the
eextent of the Conipany's continuing involvement in the asset.   In that case, the Colripany also
recognizes an associated liability.   The lransfdred asset and the associated lial)ility are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.   Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of original carrying amount Of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

FTi.anc/a/ £rdbj/in.c§.   A fiJiancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on s`ibstantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
mmodification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognitiofi of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carr)ring amounts is recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Real Estate for Sale
Ploperty acquired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than to be
hheld for rental or capital appreciation, is held as inventory and is measured at the Lower of cost and
net realizable value (NRV).

Cost includes land acquisition cost, amounts paid to contractors for construction, planning and
ddesign costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees, property transfer taxes, construction
ooverheads and other related costs and borrowing costs.  NonTefundable commissions paid to sales
or marketing agents on the sale of real estate units are expensed when incumed.

NNRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices
at the reporting date and discounted for the time value of money if material, less costs to complete
aand the estimated costs of sale.  NRV in respect Of laml undr. development is assessed with
reference to market prices at the reporting date for similar complcted praperty, less estimated costs
to complete construction and less an estimate of the time value of money to the date of
completion.

Club Shares
Club shares are stated at the lower of cost and NRV.   The cost of club shares sold is determined on
the basis mainly of the actual development cost incurred plus the estimated development cost to
complete the project based on the estimates as determinetl by the inthouse engineers, adjuste(I with
the actual costs incuned as the development progresses, including borrowing costs during the
development stage.  NRV is the estimated selling price less estimated cost to complete and sen.
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Investments  in Associates
Investments  in associates are accounted for under the equity method.   An associate is an entity in
which the Company has  significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

Under the equity metliod, the investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company's share of net assets of the
associates, Less any impairment in value.

The profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the Conpanyis
share of the financial performance of the associates.   When there has been a change recognized
directly in the equity of the associates, the Company recognizes its share of any changes and
discloses this, when applicable, as part of other comprehensive income and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.   Unrealized gains and tosses resulting from transactions between
the Conxpany and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates.

The share in income or loss of associates is presented as part of profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,   This is the income or Loss attributable to equity holders of
the associates and therefore is income or loss after tax and nen-controlling interest in the
subsidiaries of the associates.

TThe financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Conxpany.   Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Parent Company.

If the Company's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount Of an
investment, the Company discontinues including its share Of further losses.  After the Company's
investment is rqsorted at zero value, additional losses are provided for and a liability is recognized
only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
ppeyments on behalf of the associate.   If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Conxpany
resumes recognizing its share of those profits only after its share Of the profits equals the share of
net tosses not recognized.

AAfter application of the equity method, the Company dctcrmines whether it is necessary to
rrecognize an atlditional impairment Loss on the Company's investment in its associates.   The
Ccompany determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective that the investment in
aassociates is impaired.   If this is the case, the Colxpany calculates the amount of inpairment as the
ddifference between the recoverable amount of the investment in associate and its carrymg value
and recognizes against profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate. the Company measures and recognizes any
retained investment at its fair value.   Any difference between the carrying amount of the
investment in associates upon loss of significant influence and the fair value Of the retained
iinvestment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statenient
of comprehensrve income.

Investment ProDerties
Investment properties include land and building under construction held to cam rentals or for
ccapital appreciation or both.  Proptryr held under a lease is classified as investment property when
the definition of an investment property is met.   Investment property is measured initially at cost
including transaction costs.  Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional fees for legal
services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to
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be capable of operating.  The carrying amount also includes the cost Of replacing part of an
existing investment properly at the time that cost is  incurred if the recognition criteria are met and
excludes the costs of day to day serviciT`g of an investment property.   Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at amortized cost less impairment, if any.  Investment
properties under construction are not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are
comp leted and become available for aperational purpose.

Investment property is derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal.   Any gaius or losses, which are the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the investmeut property, on the retirement or disposal, are
rrecognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statemeut of comprehensive income in the year of
rchement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
ewidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another
pparty.  Transfers arc made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evldenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sale.

Pfrot)ertvAca`LisitionsandBusinessCombinations
Where property is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considers the
substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition
rrepresents the acquisition of a business.   The basis Ofjudgment is set out in Note 6.

Business combination of entitles under common control is accounted for using a mcthod similar to
ppooling of interest.   Under the pooling of interest method, any excess of. acquisition cost over the
nnet asset value of the acquired entity is recorded in equity.

Where such acquisitions are not judged to be an acqusition Of a business, they are not treated as
business combinations.   Rather, the cost to acquire the colporatc entity is allocated to the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition
date.   Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.   Otherwise, acquisitions are
accounted for as business combinations.

Prooertv and Eouioment
Property and equipment, except land, are stated at cost, excluding the cost of day-to-day servicing,
less accumulated dapreciation, amortization and impairment in value.   Such cost consists Of the

purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.   The cost of
replacing part Of the property and equipment is included in the carrying amount when the cost
incurred meets the recognition criteria.   When major repairs and maintenance is performed, its
cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied.  All other repair and maintenance costs are charged against profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.   Irdnd is calTied at cost less any
inapairment in value.
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Depreciation and amortization commences once the assets are available for use and is computed
using the straight-line  method over the  following estimated useful  lives ol`the assets:

Leasehold improvements                                              15 years or the term of the lease,
whichever is drer

Machinery and equipment                                           5 years
Condominium units and inprovements                 17 years
Transportation equipment                                            4 years or the term of the lease,

whichever is shorter
Office furniture, fixtures and equinment                  5 years

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year-end to ensure that the period and method of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property
and equipment

Construction-ini)rogress represents property and equipment under construction and is stated at
cost.  This includes cost Of construction and other direct costs.  Construction-inprogress is
transferred to the related property and equipment when the coustruction or installation and related
activities necessary to prepare the property and equipment for their intended use have been
completed and the property and equipment are ready for servlce.   Construction-in-progress is not
depreciated until such time that asscts are completed and available for use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when Ilo future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.   Any gain or loss arising on derecognition Of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or Loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the year the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further depreciation is charged to current operations.

IntanEHfo]e Assct
Intangfole assets acquiretl separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.  The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is tile fair value as at the date Of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are canied at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.   Infernally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the
cconsolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year the expenditure is incurred.

TThe useful lives of intangible assets are a§sessed as either finite or indefinite.   Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.   The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is revieved at least at
the end of each reporting period   Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are trcatod as changes in the accounting
estimates.  The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.
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lntangfole assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit le\`el.   Tlie assessment Of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life contimies to be supportable.   If not.
tthe change in the useful  life from the  indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
bbetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Other+-
Ooner assets are stated at cost Less accumulated impairment in value and are shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.   The accounting policies specific to the related assets
are as follous:

Chedi&cib/e  17'!!Afr4o4c#t?g ron /CIV7;).   CWT is recogriized by virtue of Republie Act No.  8424
relative to the withholding oTi income subject to expanded and final withholding tax on
compensation, value-added tax and other percentage taxes.  CWT is recognized when the other
pparty withheld certain taxes payable to the tax authority, and is reduced to the extent of that CWT
which will not be realized through the use of an allowance account.

f}ro/.er/ Det€fopmeH/ Cords.   Costs incurred by subsidiaries in the develapment of its leisure,
eentertainment and residential prQjects are capitalized   An allowance for impairment in value is
ppe\rided on the portion of such costs which is not likely to be recoverable.  These al.e written off
aagainst the allowance when the costs are detenined to be unrecoverable.

&(pp/je;5 /ritJentory.   Supplies inventory is valued at the lower of cost and NRV.   Cost is
detemined using the moving average method.  NRV of supplies inventory is the current
replacement cost

lnmairmentofNolnfinancialAAssets
The Company assesses at each repolling date whether there is an indication that investments in
associates,  investment properties, property and equipment, intangible asset and other assets may
be impaired.   If any such indication exists and \when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company makes an estimate Of the asset.s recoverable amount.   An asset.s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell or
its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
illflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.   Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.   In dcterndning fair value less costs to sell, an

appropriate valuation model is used.   These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples
and other available fair value indicators.   In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assct.

Any impairme]it loss is recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function Of the impaired
assets.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment tosses may no Longer exist or may have decreased.   If such indication
exists, the Company makes an estimate of recoverable amount.  A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
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asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.   If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.   That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset  in prior years.   Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.   After such a reversal, the dapreciation
charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the assct's rcviscd carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Egrfu
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.   Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.
Proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Retained camings represent the accumulated earnings.

EEouitv Share in Cost Of parent Comoanv Shares Held bv Associates
Equity share in cost of parent Con+pany common shares held by associates represent the amount
that reduces the Company's "Investments in and advances to associates" account and equity
balance by the Colxpany's effective ownership in Parent Company common shares held by
associates.

Cost Of Parent Comoanv Common and Ppreferred Shares Held bv Subsidiaries
Cost of parent Company common shares held by subsidiaries are equity instruments which are
reacquired (treasury shares) and are recognized at cost and deducted from equity.   No gain or loss
is recognized in the profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.   Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration is recognized in other reserves.

Non-controlling Interest fNclt
NCI represent the pollion of profit or loss and the not assets not held by the Parent Company an(I
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity
in the consolidated statement of fiTiancial positiorL separately from total equity attributable to
owrners of the Parent Company.   Any losses applicable to a noncontrolling shareholder of a
cconsolidated subsidiary in excess of the non-controlling shareholder's equity in the subsidiary are
changed against the NCI even if this results in NCI having a deficit.

NNCI represent the equity interest in HGC not held by the Parent Company.

RRevenueRecofmilion
Revenue is recognize(I to the extelit that it is probable that the e(;onomic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured.   Revenue is measured at the
fair value Of the cousideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and exchiding taxes or duty.
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The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent.   Except for "Commission income," the Company has concluded that  it is
acting as a principal  in all of its revenue arrangements.   The following speciflc recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revemle from Sale Of Real Estate and club Shares.  R.eve"e £[om salle o£ real estate. wh+ch
include the sale of lots and condominium units and club shares, are accounted for under the full
accrual method of accounting.   Under this method, revenue and cost is recognized when: (a) the
colLectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured: (b) the earnings process is virtually
complete; and (c) the Seller does not have a substantial continuing involvement with the subject

properties.

Real estate sales, where the Company has material obligations under the sales contract to provide
improvements after the property are sold, are accounted for under the percentage of completion
method.  Under this method. the gain on sale is realized as the related obligations are fulfilled and
the units are completed, measured principally as a percentage of actual cost incurred to drte over
the total estimated project cost.

If none of the revenue recognition criteria are met, deposit method is applied until all the
conditions for recording a sale are met.   Pending recognition of sale, cash received from buyers is
accounted as customers. deposits included under "Accounts payable and other liabilities" account
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Comm[.ssi.oH /#come ®resented under "Other revenues" account).   Revenue is recognized when
the related services are rendered.   Commission is computed as a certain percentage of the net
contract price of the sold real estate project of a related party.

Di'v/.dends.   Revem)e is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is
established.

£e'ase Jwcome.   Lease income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted
for on a straight-Line basis over the terms of the lease.

Dci)/ /  Ga{.w oH Fi.Howce Lease.   This pertains to the income arising from the difference between
the fair value of an asset and its cost.   Day  I  gain in finance lease is recognized when incremental
economic benefit will flow to the entity and the amount can be measured reliably.

Gal.„ o„ Share Swap.   Gain is recognized upon delivery of shares and upon confirmation of receipt
by the other party.

Gal.# a" £i.giii.dr/i.#g D;vi.de#d.   Revenue is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Reve#ite/ron Praperty A4:ci#agcmew/.   Revenue is recognized as services of providing utilities and
maintenance are performed.

Jwcome/ram For/e!.ftires.  This represents income from forfeitures of the deposits and, to a certain
extent, installments from customers in the event of a default and/or from cancellations of sales.
Revenue is recognized upon ap|)roval of cancellation.
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/wares/ //7come.   Interest income from trade receivables is recognized as the interest accrues using
the effective interest rate,  which  is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the fi"ncial asset to the net carrying amount.   Interest iricome from
bank deposits is reeognized as it accrues.

rer»7j#atio» J/.comet   Termination income is recognized when amount is actually collected.

Ple„a/ty.   Penalty pertains to income from surcharges for buyers' default and hate payments.
Income is recognized when penalty is actually collected.

Offaer /Hco7»e.   Revenue is recognized when there is an incremental economic benefit, other than
the usual business operations, that will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be
measured reliably.

Costs and Exoense Recomition
Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other
than those relating to distribulious to equity participants.  Costs and expenses are recognized in

profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the basis of systematie
and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several
accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined;
or immediately when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent
that, future economic benefits do not qualify, cease to qualify, for recognition in the consolidated
statement Of financial position as an asset.

Cost of real estate sol{l includes all direct materials and labor costs, and those indirect costs related
to contract performance.   When it is probable that the labor contract cost will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognized immediately.   Changes in j.ob performance, job conditions
and estimated profitability` including those arising from contract penalty provisions and final
contract settlements which may result in revisions to estimated costs and gross margins, are
recognized in the year in which the revisions are determined.   The cost of inventory recognize(I in
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income upofl sale is dctermined with
reference to the specific costs incurred on the property, allocated to the saleable area based on
relatlve size and takes into account the percentage of completion used for revenue recognition

Purpose.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contain, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date or whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use Of a specific asset or assets or tile arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.   A
reassessment is made after inception Of the lcase only if one Of the following applies:

a.    There is a change in contractual terms, other than a rene`ral or extension Of the arrangement;
b.    A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or

extension was initially included in tl]e lease term;
c.     There is a change in the dctermination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified

asset; or
d.    There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario b.
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Company as a lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases.   Operating lease payments are charged against profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of com|)rehensive income on a straight-line basis over tlie lease term.

Company as u lessor
Finance leases whieh transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are recorded as finance lease receivable measured at present value of
the minimum lease payments.   Lease payments from the lessee are apportioried between finance
charges and reduction of the lease receivable so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the recei`/able.   Finance charges are recognised in interest income on finance
lease in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

TThe cost of the leased item is derecognized at inceptLon of the lease.   Cost includes estimated cost
to complete the construction of a leased item and recognized as "Estimated liability on
construction costs" Separately shown in the consolidated statements of financial position and shall
be settled based on actual billings from the contractors and a¢usted upon completion of thec-tion.
Capwh/jzafo" a/QperclAf)ig Lease.   Where a building will be constructed on a land under
operating lease, the operating lease costs that are incurred during the construction period may be
capitalized as part Of the construction cost Of the bui]dmg.   Otherwise, this may be expensed
outright.

When capitalized, such Lease costs are viewed as costs directly attributable to bringing the building
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a mauner intended by
management.    Lease costs are necessary aml unavoidable costs of constructing the building,
because without this lease, no construction could occur.

Borrowing Ctosts
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the development of the Company's projects that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the "Real estate for sale", "Club shares". "Investment properties" and "Property and
equipment" accounts in the consolidated statement of financial positiorL   Capitalization of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.   All other bonowmg costs are expensed in the period they
occur.  Borrowing costs consist Of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the boITowing of funds.

Peusiolncosts
The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate Of the present value of the defined benefit
chligation at the cnd Of the reporting period reduced by the fair value Of plan assets (if any)
adjustetl for any effect of limiting a not defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.  The assct ceiling
is the present value Of any economic benefits available in the fom of refunds from the plan or
reductious in future contributions to the plan.

The cost Of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method
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Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
I      Servicecosl
-      Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
I      Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs. past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss.   Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.  These amounts are calculated penodically by
independent quali fled actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage Of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.

Remcasurements comprising actuarial gains and tosses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.   Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance

policies.  Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid
directly to the Company.   Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information.   When no
market price is available. the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal date Of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period
until the settlement of the related obligations).   If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the

present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit
assct is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the

plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Company's righi to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is vinually certain.

Actuarial valuntious are made with sufficient regularity that the amounts recogliized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be
deterlnined at the reporting penod.

Forei gn Currency-denominated Transactions and Translations
Trausactious denominated in foreign currency are recorded in Philippine peso by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Philippine peso and the foreign ourrency
at the date of transaction.   Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are restated using the closing exchange rate at the reporting date.   All differences are
recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  Nonmonetary
items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using tlie exchange
rates as at the dates of initial transactions.  Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value `vas deternrined.
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Income Taxes

aimer/ 7lrzi:.   Current income tax assets and income tax liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority.   The tax
rrates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Der2mec7 flan::   Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
rreporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabihties and their carrying amounts for
fifinancial reporting purposes, and the carryforward benefit of minimum corporate income tax
(MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT), to the extent that it is probable that future
tawhle profit will be available against whicb the temporary differences and carry forward benefit
of unused MCIT can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all larable (emporary differences, except.

I      where the deferred Lax liabihLy arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

I      in reapect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

associates and interests injoint ventures, where the timing Of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Defidred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
pprobable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differeDces can be utilized except:

•      where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible telxporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an assct or Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time Of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

I      in reapect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests injoint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of defined tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is ne longer probable that sufficieut taxable profit will be available to allow all or
palt Of the defined tax assets to be utilized.  Uhrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become prchal)Le that future taxable
profit will allow the clefened tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year \when the asset is realized or the liabihty is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offiet, if a legally enforceat)le right exists to
offiet current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same tax authority.
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7th/ale-Acaldec7 7lai: /7tl 7).   Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT
except:

•      where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services  is not recoverable from the taxation

authority,  in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item as applicable; and

I      receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is inelnded as part of
"Input VAT" under "Other Assets" account or "Output VAT payable" under "Accounts payat)le

and other liabilities" account, respectively, in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Earnines Per Share (EPS`
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net profit or loss for the year attributable to common equity
holders of the parent, after recognition of the dividend requirement of preferred shares, as

applicable, by the weighted average number of issued and outstanding common shares during the
year, after giving retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net profit or loss for the year attributable to common equity
hholders of the parent by the weighted average number of issued and outstanding common shares
drring the year plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be issued on
cconversion of all the dilutive potential common shares into common shares.   The calculation Of
ddiluted EPS does not ass`me conversion, exercise, or other issue of potential common shares that
would have aD anti-dilutive effect on EPS.

As the Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding, basic and diluted EPS are
stated at tile same amount.

+isinesssegments
TThe Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nnature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different products.

Sl?gmen/ 4s;sets arc/I/c7b//"/es,   Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and
cconsist principally of operating cash, receivables, real estate for sale, club shares, investment
ppraperties and propelty and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Segment liabilities include all aperating liabilities and consist principally of accounts payable and
other liabihities.   Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred income taxes, investments
and advances, and borrowings.

/w/er-sqg/7ie/I/ 7/ic]/!sac//our.   S egment revenue, segment expenses and segment p erformance
include transfers among business segments.  The transfirs, if any, are accounted for at competitive
market prices chargetl to unaffiliated customers for similar products.   Such transfers are eliminatetl
in consolidation

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation Oegal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow Of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and, a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
chligation.   When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
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under an insurance contract, the reimbursement  is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.   The expense relating to any provision is presented as part of

profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time vafue of money is material, provisions are discouuted using a current

pretax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.   Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

ColntinEeneies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in tile consolidated financial statements.   They are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility Of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.   Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Penod
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's financial position at
the reporting penod (adjusting events) if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.  Post year-end events that are not adjusting e\/ents al`e disclosed in tile notes to
cconsolidated financial statements when material.

6.    Signiricant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and As§umptious

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

Judquents
ln the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apall from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the cousolidatcd financial statements:

De/e77»/.#a//.o# o/FztHc//.oHa/ C"rrewey.   Based on the economic substance Of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Company, the Company has determined its functional currency to be
Philippine peso.   It is the currency of the primary eeonomic envil.onment in which the Company
operates and the currency that mainly influences the revenue and expenses.

Recognllion Of Revenue on and Cost Of sale Of Real Estate arid Clul) Shares.  Selecting an
appropriate revenue recognition method for a particular sale transaction requires certain judgments
based on sufficiency of cumulative payments by the buyer and completion of development.  The
completion of development is determined based on actual costs incurred over the total estimated
development costs reconciled with the engineer's judgment and estimates on the physical portion
of contract work done if the development cost is beyond preliminary stage.

Revenue and cost from sale of real estate and club shares sold amounted to P175.3 million and
Pl 15.4 million, respectively,  in 2013, P323.6 million and Pl 17.2 million, respectively, in 2012
and P520.2 million and P236.0 million, respectively,  in 2011  (see Note 25).
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Delermination Of Fair Value Of Finarlc`ial Assels and Finarlcial Liabililies` Certain fiina,r\ctial assets
and rinancial liabilities are carried and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgments.   While significant components of fair \.alue measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e.,  foreign exchange rates.  interest rates and
volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized a
different valuation methodology.   Any changes in the assumptions could affect the fair value of
these financial assets and finaneial liabilities.

The fair value of financial assets amounted to i L4,760. I  IniLLion and P6.016.7 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   The fair value of financial liabilities amounted to
P8,131.5  million and F8,187.0 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

(see Note 37).

Determination Of Fair Value Of Financial Assets Not Quoted in an Active Market.  The Corapa:ny
classified financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an
active markct.   Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted ih an active
market is the determination on whether quoted prices arc readily and regularly available, and
whether those prices represent actual and regularly accruing market transaction in an am's length
basis.

The fair values of the Company's investments in unquoted shares cannot be reasonably
determined as these shares are not quoted in an active market,   There were no recent transactions
involving these shares, therefore these iflvestments are carried at cost less impairment, if any.  The
Company does not intend to dispose these investments in unquoted shares.

The carrying value of AFS financial assets in unquoted shares amounted to P65.2 million and
P2.8 million as at December 31, 2013  and 2012, respectively (see Note  14).

C./assjJ;cdr/ow a/Praperty.   The Company determines whcther a property is classified as
investment property, inventory or property and equipment :

I      Investment property comprises Land, building and leasehold improvements whieh are not
occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor are these for sale
in the ordinary course of t7usiness. but are held primarily to cam rental income and capital

appreciation.

•     Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Principally, these are condominium units and residential lots that the Company develops and
intends to sell before or on completion of construction.

I     Property and equipment includes land and leasehold improvements and condominium units
and improvements, among others.   These properties are used by the Company as model houses
and are neither for sale nor for rentals.  Other properties and equipment are intended for
op eratious or administrative purposes.

Eva/iia//.o# a/Lease Commi./men/I.  The evaluation of whether an arrangement contains a lease is
based on its substance.   An arrangement is, or contains a lease when the fulfillment of the
a.Tangement depends on spccific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.
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In 2013, the    arent Company, as a lessor, has accounted for the lease Of its building structures
under rlnarice lease as at the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease

payments amounts to at least substantially all of a fair value of the leased asset.   The finance lease
accounting resulted in the recognition of finance lease receivable amounting to P9J75.0 million
and derecognition of its investment property amounting to P7,050.6 million (see Notes  15 and 31).
The excess of present value of tile minimum lease payment over the budgeted cost of the
investment property amounting to P2,324.4 million was recognized as "Day  I  gain on finance
lease" in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

TThe Parent Company, as a lessor, has accounted for the lease agreements for its land under an
aperating Lease.  The Parent Company has determined that it has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased properties to the lessee because of the following
factors:

a) the lessee will not acquire ownership of the leased praperties I+pon termination of the lease; and
b) the lessee was not given an option to purchase the assets at a price that is sufficiently lower than
the fair value at the dste of the option.

Rent income earned from lease of land amounted to Pl 57. I  million, Pl 8.4 million and
P62. I  million in 2013, 2012 arid 2011, respectively (see Note 31).

TThe Parent Company, as a lessee, has entered into lease agreements for its office space, land,
pparking lots, machinery, offLce and transportation equipment.   The Parent Company has
determined that it has not acquired the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the leased
properties thus the Company recognized the lease agreements as operating leases.

Rent expense recognized from operating lease in 2013, 2012 and 2011  amounted to
Pl I.6 million, P8.4 million and P4.3 million, respectively (scc Notes 27 and 31 ).

Praperfy ,4cqutsr./four.   In 2011, the Company acquired a subsidiary, a grantee of a provisional
license to estabhish and operate a casino, through a share swap agreement.   The Company accounts
for an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired in
addition to the property.   More specifically, consideration is made to the extent to which
significant processes is acquired.

MManagementconsideredthesubstanceoftheassetsandactivitiesoftheacquiredentityand
assessed that the acquisition of the subsidiary does not represent a business, but rather an
acquisition of an intangible asset, the subsidiary being the holder of the right to establLsh and

q)Crate a casino (see Note  17).  The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the assets and liabilities
acquired based upon their relative fair values, and no goodwill or defined tax is recognized.

EEstitimatesandAssurmtions
TThe key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

Delerrmination Of lmpairrnent Of Receivables and Advances to Associates arld Other Related
Par/fee.  The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts at a level considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables and advances.  The level of this
allowance is evaluated by the management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility Of
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the accounts.   These factors include, but are not limited to, the age and status of receivable, the
length of relationship  with the customers and related parties,  the counterparty's payment behavior
and known market factoi.s.

The Company reviews the allowance on a continuous basis.   Accounts that are specifically
identified to be potentially uncollectible are provided with adequate allowance through charges to
income in the form of provision for doubtful accounts.  A provision is also established as a certain
percentage of receivables and advances not provided with specific allowance.   This percentage is
based on a collective assessment of historical collection, current economic trends, changes in
customer payment terms and olher factors that may affect the Company's ability to collect
payments.  The amount and timing of I.ecorded provision for doubtful accounts for any period
would differ if the Company made diffel'ent judgments or utilized different estimates.   An inerease
in the Company's allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the recorded operating
expenses and decrease its assets.

Provision for doubtful accounts on receivables amounted to PO.4 million and P2.4 million in 2013
and 2012, respectively (see Notes 9 and 29).   Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts,
amounted to P I,210.8 million and Pl,353.0 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.   Auowance for doubtful accounts amounted to P129.3 million and P37. I  million as
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9).

Provision for doubtful accounts on advances to associates and related parties amounted to
nil and I 12.7 million in 2013 and 2012, respeetively (see Notes  12, 29 and 33).   Advances to
associates and other related parties, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, amounted to
P3,718. I  million and P4,219.8 million as at December 31,  2013 and 2012, respectively.
ALlowance for impairment amounted to P 153.9 million and Pl 69. I  million as at December 31,
2013  and 2012, respectively (see Notes  12 and 33).

Deter'rl'Iination Of NRV Of Real Estate fior Sale, Club Shares and Suppl-Ies Inventory.  The Co"parry
writes down the carrying value of real estate for sale, club shares and supplies inventory whenever
the NRV becomes lower than cost due to changes in market prices or other causes.   The carTying
value is reviewed at least amually for any decline in value.

The carrying values of inventories carried at cost are as follows:

2013                              2012

(In The.Isands)

Real estate for sale (see Note 10)
Club shares (see Note 11)
Supplies inventory*(see Note 18)

P3,S92,276
2'810,221

3'778

P2,901,335
2,812,642

5.067

*lncluded iinder " OIher assets " accotlnl in lhe consol idaled slatemerlts Of f inancial posilion.

Determination Of lmpairlnent Of AFS Financial Assels.  The Company determines that AFS
financial assets are ilxpaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.   The Company
determines that a decline in fair value of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant
decline and a decline for a period of more than  12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline.
Tliis determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment.   In making this
judgment, the Corrpany evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share price for
quoted equities.   In addition, AFS financial assets are considered impaired when management
believes that future cash flows generated from the investment is expected to decline significantly.

lmlmlllllllllmlmllllll"llllllll"lllmlll



.33-

The Company's management makes significant estimates and assumptions on the future cash
flows expected and the appropriate discount rate to determine if impairment exists.   Impairment
may also be appropriate when there is evidence of detei.ioration in the financial health of.the
investee, industry and sector performance.

No provision for inpairment of AFS financial assets was recognized in 2013, 2012 and 2011.  The
canying values of AFS financial assets amounted to P1,773.8 million and P28.6 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note  14).

Delermiralion Of commericement Of Amortizalio n Of Intangible Asset.  The Compa.ny' s c;i`sino
gaming License ("License") will be amortized on a Straight-line basis over the term of the License
which is concurrent with Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation's (PAGCOR)
congressional franchise set to expire in 2033.  The amortization of the License will commence
upon issuance by PAGCOR of the Notice to Commeflce Casino Operations which will replace the
current provisional license.

Estimation Of Useful Lives Of property and Eqilipment.  The useful life of each Of the Coapany. s
property and equipment is estimated based on the period over which the asset is expected to be
available for use.   Such estimation is based on a collective assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets.  The estimated useful life of each asset is
reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the
asset.  It is possible, however, that future financial performance could be materially affected by
changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by changes in the factors
mentioned above.   A reduction in the estimated useful life of any property and equipment would
Increase the recorded depreciation and amortization expense and decrease assets.

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment in 2013 and 2012.

Deterrriinaljon Of lmpairment Of Nonfinancial Assets.  The Corlrpany assesses whcher there a:Ie
any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at each reporting date.   Investments in
associates,  investment properties, property and equipment and other assets are reviewed for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Intangible asset is reviewed for impairment while it is still not yet available for use.  Determining
the value in use of these nonfinanciaL assets, which requires the determination of fut`ne cash flows
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires
the Company to make estimates and assunptious that can materially affect the cousolidated
financial statements.   Future events could cause the Company to conclude that such nonfinancial
assets are Impaired.   Any resulting impairment loss could have a matenal adverse irxpact on the
Company' s consolidated financ ial statements.

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets subjected to impairment review as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013                              2012

Investments in associates - net (see Note  12)
Investment properties (see Note 15)
Property and equipment (See Note  16)
Intangible asset (see Note  17)
Other asscts* (see Note  18)

*Exchlding sxpi)ties  ir\ventory.

(Irl Thousands)

P992,454              P5 ,47 8 ,098
2,958,707                 5 ,5 84,824

176,014                        160.283
5,261,186                    5.261,186
I,092,360                      753,217
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The aggregate accumulated impairment loss of investments in associates, property and equipment,
and other assets amounted to P2,548.3 million and P2,546.2 million as at December 31, 2013 and
2012.  Impairment was provided since management believes that future cash flows generated from
the assets  is expected to decline significantly.

Impairment losses recognized on these nonfinancial assets amounted to P4.4 million. PO.02 million
and nil in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Notes  12,  16,17 and  18).   Reversal of allowance for

probable loss on other assets amounted to hil. PO.4 mimon and nil in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.  No inpairment of intangible asset was recognized in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

JZca/;zcioI./7tj; a/.De/erred ra* 4Sse/s.   Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable income
will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.   Significant management

judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together with future tax planning
strategies.

The carrying value of recognized deferred tax assets amounted to P2,238.6 million and
P140.4 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   Uurecognized deferred tax assets
amounted to P764.5 million and P657.8 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively
(see Note 30).

De/erm7.#a/I.o# anc7 Compw/t]/I.o# a/Peusi.o# Car/.  The cost of defined benefit pension plans and
other post employment medical benefits as well as the I)resent value of the pension obligation arc
determined using actuariaL valuations.   The actunrial valuation involves making various
assumptions.   These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases.  Due to the colxplexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions.   All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.   Pension
asset amounted to P12.5 minion and Pl .6 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

(see Note 32).

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined bencfit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is
modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected firfure inflation rates for the specific country.

Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 32.

Evcz/a/c}//.o# a/£egcl/ Con//.nge„c/.ef.   The Company is currently involved in legal and
administrative proceedings.   The Company's estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of
these claims has been developed in consultation with outside legal counsel handling defense in
these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results.  The Company currently does not
believe these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its financial statements.   It is
possible, however, that future financial performance could be materially affected by charlges in the
estimates or in the effectiveness of §trategies relating to these proceedings (see Note 35).

No provision for probable losses has been recognized in 2013. 2012 and 2011.
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7.    Segment Information

The primary segment reporting format is presented based on business segments in which the
Company's risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and
services provided.  Thus, the operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.

The Company is in the businesses of real estate development and ga"ng and gaming-related
activities, among others.

Financial information about the Company's business segments are shown below:

ZO'3

Gaming
and Gamlng

Related
iistments        Co nsolldated

EarDingg IDforllptlon
Revenue
Costs and cxperiscs
Equity jn nct earnings ol` associates
Interest cxp ensc
Interest income
Provision for income tax
Net profit (loss) for the year
Nat profit (loss) attributable to

equity holders of the parent
Other lnforuntfoD
IDvestmenl§ in and advances to

associates
llTM investments
Ava i lable-I.or-sale  financial  assets
Advances (o related parties
Segment assets
Segment habilities
Consolidated (otal assets
Consolidated (otal liabilities
Capilal expendiiures
DeprecialJOD and  amorti2ration

P2,689|582
(844,261)

6,838
(103,852)

1'8,068

(12,539)
113,102

56,loo                               4
lJ32276                     I ,2S3
3,S39242                    133,OS8

3,S42,90 I                      133,OS8

7}rJ.J79
750,000

.,.252.731
11,587

22`930.79S
3,108310

34,162,893
14J66,829
I,loo,170

(34J82)

(In Thousands)

I-
(3S6)

(1173,503)           P2,624247
35,8S6                 (818joo)

-                   119,940
-                 (103,85Z)
-                     56,112

I,S29

I,539

146,9lz                4,000,763

I,572.102                        41,742

61.671                        54.633
I,283                               2S

1,780,684                4,097,138
I,174227                4,Ol9,4S5

(4 ls)                          (142)

-                I.333,52,

(37,645)               3,636,184

(37,645)               3,639,853

(10J87,438)                  978,016
-                   7SO,000

(3.092,782)               I,773,793
-                      I I,S87

4,993JS3             28,040,4S2

(627,7S6)               2,481,862
(8,486,867)            31,S53,848
(8,213,747)             11,346,764

-                I,130,170
-                   (34.93,)

Gamung
and Gamung

Related

Earnings lofot.Im(ion
Revenue
Costs aiid expelrses
Equity in net earnings of associates
in(eresl cap ensc
in(Crest income
Provision for income tax
Net prc}fit (loss) for the year
Net profit (loss) @ttnbutable to

equity holders of the paLrent

(Forward)

F494,433
(472,650)
146,601

(128,151)

P25.000
(17.748)
142,129

116,450                                           3

157,231                                      915

4U8,872                       148`442

408.910                      148`442

(1n Thousands)

a-
(147)

(F25.000)
25,000

(I,5UO)

(I,500)

F494,433
(465,545)
288,730

(L28,15l)
116,453

158.146

555,663

555,720

Iun]mNIiill[Iiimiiiiiilliillllillli[iliml
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20 I 2 (As restated

Gaming
and Gaming

Related
Act i vi.ies                         Others

(ln  Thc]usand,i)

Other lnformatlon
Investments  in and advances to

associates
H" Investments
AvaiJablc-for.sale  rinancinl assets
Advances to reJatcd parties
Segment assets
Segment  liab i lities
Consol idated  total assets
Consolidated total  I iabi I ities
Capital expendituTes
Depreciation and amortization

P7,795,662
750,000
24,898

482,469
9,722,064
2,392,297

18,775.092

I  I ,836,021

(2,104,947)
(30,414)

P151,622                              P764

I,208,497                       24 ,409

53,519

(822)
78,691

19.935

(101)

(as.064,989)

(I.229,185)

12,513,959

(708,008)
5,2 19,785

(3,841,329)

i l ,883,05 9
750.000
28,619

482,469
22,3 18,295

I,686,895
25,462,442
8,839.047

(2,104,998)

(30.926)

Real Estate

Cam,ng
and GOJrmg

R€haled
Activities                        Others

ELimimations/

Consolidated

(In Thtiurand.s)

Eat.nlngs lnforrmtlon
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Equity in net camings of associates
Interest expense
Interest income
Provision for income tax
Net profit ( loss) for the year
Net prorit (loss) attributable to

equity holders of the parcn(
Other llirormation
Investments  in and advances to

associales
Available-for-sale inveslmenls
Advances (o related parties
Segment assets
Segment linbilities
CbnsolLdated tolal assets
C`oJisolidated  (olal  ljabili`;es

CapL(al expendifures
Deprcclation aLnd  arnortizallon

P775,350                             I-
(538.523)
(]0,391)

(158,160)
28,419
23,730
60,372

60,372

9.001.613

17.954

457,764
6,536,147

112,315

16,013,489

3,582,781

( I .965,149)

(26,954)

(9.153)
150.875

79

141,781

141,78L                                   (228)

146,923                                760
I,106,869                         33,446

68,770                          53.061
700                  2,148,402

I,322.551                           87,268

811,739                    2.169,159

P-                P775,350
-                  (547.877 )
-                     140.484
-                    (158.160t
-                     28,498
-                     23,730
-                   201,925

57

(7.031.130)

( I.135.933)

13,390,852

(716,835)
5,223,788

201,982

2.118.166

22.336
457.764

20,048,830
1`544,582

22,647,096
6,563,679

-                ( I,965,149)

(4)                             (101 )                                     -                       (27,059)

The following illustrate the reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, net profit, assets and
liabilities to the Company's corresponding amounts:

2012 2011

2013 As restated As restated

Revenues
Total revenue for reportable segmenls
Elimination for intercom

P2,697,750

(1n Thousa)ids)

P519,433 P775,350

Consolidated revenue                                                              P2 247                      P494.433                      P775 ,35 0

Net Profit for the Year
Total profit for reportablc segments                                     P3,673,829                      P557,163                      P201,92 5
Elimination for intercom
Consolidated net P3,636,184                      P555 ,663 ?201,925

(Forward)

iiilmmllmmiiimiiiliiiiml"
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20'2                                     2011

2013               (As restated)               (As restated

Assets
Total assets for rei)ortable segments
Investments in and advances to associates
HTM investmen ts
AFS financial assets
Advances to related

P28,040,452
978,016
750,000

I,773,793
11,587

qn Thousands)

P22,3 I 8,295
I,883,059

750,000
28,619

482,469

P20,048,830
2,1  18,166

22,336
457,764

Consolidated assets                                                                 P31,553848               P25 ,462,442               P22,647,096

Lial,lllties
Total liabilities for reportable segments
Loans payable
Long-ten det)t
Nontrade liability
Advances from related parties*
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred air on finance lease

P2,481,862
200'466

1'50Z,800
4,000'000

77'S39
836,S30

2£47,567

FL,686,895
2,081,714
4,719,165

183,329
167,944

Pl,544,582
2,155,857

2,559,584

214,611

89,045

Consolidated liabilities                                                          Pl I ,346,764                  P8,839,047                  P6,563,679
*Presented under  "Accounts pa,val)Ie and olher liabilities "  acconlnl in lhe consolidated staleirienls Of`f inaricial posi lion.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.   Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit or
Loss in the consolidated financial statements.   However, financing (including interest expense and
interest income) and income taxes are managed as a whole and are not allocated to operating
segments.  Transfer prices between operating segments are on an am's length basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties.

Capital expenditures consist of additions of property and equipment and expenditures on
investment properties.

8.    Cash and cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

(1n Thousands)

Cash on hand and in banks                                                                 P269,184                  P188.687
Cash e uivalents (see Note 33 212                     1.23

396               Pl,419,71l

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.   Cash equivalelits are short-term
investments which are made for varying periods within one day to three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company and Cam interest at the respective short-term
Investment rates.

Short-term investments with original maturities of more than three months to one year are shown
separately in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Interest income earned from cash in banks, cash equivalents and short-term Investments
amounted to I 13. I  million, P86.3 million and P24.9 million in 2013` 2012 and 2011. respectively

(see Note 28).
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9.     Receivables -Net

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

(lnTho.Isands)

Trade (see Note 33)                                                                                  P986,264               P1,158,862
Others                                                                                                           353 872                       231,235

I,340,136                  I,390,097
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 349                          37,125

P1,210,787               Pl`352,972

I      Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generauy collected in installment within

3 to 5 years.

-      Other receivables mainly pertain to advances to third parties, which are noninterest-bearing

and generally have 90 days term.

As at Deeember 31, 2013 and 2012, trade receivables with nominal amount of pl,036.6 million
and Pl,222.1 million, respectively, were recorded initially at fair value.   The fair value of the
receivables was obtained by discounting future cash flows using applicable interest rates ranging
from I.5% to 5.30% and 2.0% to 5.1% as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.  The unamortized
discount amounted to P50.4 million and P63.3 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.   Amortization of discount on trade reeeivables, shorn under "Other revenue"
account in the cousolidated statements of comprehensive income, amounted to P32.3 million,
P29.4 million and P54.5  million in 2013, 2012  and 2011, respectively (see Note 24).

Movement of unamortized discount on trade reeeivables are as follows:

2013                              2012

Trade receivables at nominal amount
(11. Thousands)

Pl,036,640               Pl ,222,112
Less discount on trade receivables:

Balance at begiming of year
Discount recognized during the year
Amortization durin

63,250                        47. 858
19,406                        44.7 84
32'280 29,392

Balance at end Of ear                                                                       50 376                        63 ,250
264                P1.158,862

As at December 31, 2013, the gross undiscounted trade receivables amounting to P89.5 million
have been assigned on a with recourse basis with BDO.

As at December 31, 2012, the gross undiscounted trade receivables amounting to P242.4 million,
have been assigned on a without recourse basis to BDO Unibank, lnc.  (BDO), an associate of
SMIC, a. stockholder.   Under the terms of the assignment, the Company will deliver all Contracts
to Sell and oustomers' copies of the Certificates of Title covered by these receivables to be held in
custody by the counterparty until the receivables are paid and/or repurchased by the Company.
The Comi)any also agreed that the counterparty may at its sole option, assign, sell, transfer or
otherwise dispose of, or encumber or create a lien or liabnity on the receivables in favor of any
third party (see Note 33).
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Terms and conditions relating to related party I.eceivables are disclosed in Note 33.

Movement in tlie allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:

2013
Trade                       Others                          Tota I

Balance at begiming of year
Provision (see Note 29)
Allowance of a subsidiary

accounted under pooling of
interest

Transfers/others

qn Thousands)
P5,773                    P31,352

352

86'977
4'895

P37'125
352

86,977
4,895

Balance at end of ea I                                           P5,773                  P123 576                  P 129,349

Trade                      Others                         Total

qn Thousands)
Balance at begiming of year                              P5,085                    P29,687                    P34,772
Provision see Note 29 688                              I,665                             2,353
Balance at end of car                                               P5,773                      P31,352                      P37,125

ALlowance for doubtful accounts is determined using specific identification.

LO.  Real Estate for Sale -at cost

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

Land held for future development
Resident ial lots
Land under development
Condominiun units

(Irl Tho.isands)
F2,937,309              P2.40l,338

651,664                      483,107
13,587

303                            3,303
P3,S92,276              P2.901, 3 3 5

Land held for future development consists of propellies in Tagaytay City, Batangas and Cavite.  It
also includes certain parcels of land with a carrying value amounting to P915.5 million and
P391.2 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012` respectively, located in Batangas which are
already in the Company's possession but are not yet fully paid pending the transfer of certificates
of title to the Company.   Outstanding payable related to the acquisition sbown under "Accounts
payable and other liabilities" account in the cousolidated statements of financial position
amounted to I 136.3 million and I 147.7 million as at Deeember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively
(see Note 20).

Land held for future development and residential lots with carrying values of p16.0 million and
P59. I  million, respectively, as at December 31, 2012 are mortgaged as security for the Company's
loans payable (see Note  19).
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Land under development pertains to land with on-going developments which are not yet opened
up for sale due to pending License to Sell from Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board.

A summary or the movement in inventory is set out below:

2013                              2012

Balance at bcgiming of year
Land acquired during the year
Construction/development costs incurred
Disposals (recognized as cost of sales) (see Note 25)
Assets of subsidiary accounted under pooling of

interest
Land costs transferred from land for future

development to residential Lots

qn Thousnds)
P2,901,335               P3.036,153

529,660                       137.914
132,446                      420`545

(91,654)                      (91,968)

2:J,Srl1

518
(242,272)
359,037

Balance at end of car                                                                      P3,592.276              P2,90 I ,3 3 5

11.  club Shal.es - At Cost

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, lnc. (TMGcl)
(see Note 33)

The Country Club al Tagaytay Highlands, Inc.
(Country C lub)

Tagaytay Highlands lnternational Go lf
Club, Inc. (Tagaytay Highlands)

a and Lod e at Ta hlands, Inc.

(In The)usands)

Pl,262,340              Pl,264,332

803,loo                      803`528

652,700                      652,700
081                         92,082
221                P2.812,642

The Company has a Development Agreement (DA) with TMGCI for the construction and
development of a 36-hole golf course which was amended on December 15,  1999.  The terms of
the amended DA call for as many subscriptions as there are shares, such that the club shares to be
issued by TMGCI to the Company as the development progresses will be in propollion to pre-
agreed amount of development cost, inclusive of the initial capital contribution.

Club shares with total carrying value of p2,074. I  million a§ at December 31, 2012 are pledged as
security for the Company's loans payable (see Note 19).
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12.  Investments jn and Advances to Associates -net

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

Investments in associates - net of impairment in
value of P 141.9 million in 2013  and 2012

Advances to associates - net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of p145.2 million in 2013  and
P159.9 million in 2012 (see Notes 29 and 33)

Subscri

Qn Thousands)

P992,454              P5.478 ,098

3,706,490
3,720,928

3`737,345
7,332,384

P978,016               Pl,883,059

Investments in the following significant associates are accounted for under the equity method:

201,                                                                                      20lz

Belle J8i  Alai  coTperatlon (Bcllc Jal  Alai)-                     Gaming
Lucky star Gaul.g coiTrowhon a.ucky star).           Gaming
Woodlands De`'elopmenl caTporation (WDC)             Real eSlate
APC C,Toui., Inc  (ArcI                                                          Mming
Pac]fic Online Systems (`onii}mlion (Paci ric Chline`fianiitg
Sirrophil                                                                                                 Holdiiig

50.00                         _
49.00                         _
47.00                        -
4659                   Z.i I
2lj,                   11.41

HJghlonds prime, lnc.  (H)ghlands pril"')                        Rcaf  Es(ate
•Non-nperallrig

The associates are all incorporated in the Philippines.

Movements of investments in associates consist of:

2013                                     2012

Acqulsiljon cost:
Balance at begimiJ)g of year
Acquisltion during the year
Liquidation of Investment in Belle Bay City Corporation

(Belle Bay City) during the year
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted under pooling of

ia'erest
osal throu h share swa

Ill,435,139

(In Thou.sands)

P12,341.598
927

(907,386)

(4,815,635)
827J83

Balance at end ofears 121                           11,435,139

Accumulated equity in net Losses:
Balance at begiming of year
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted under pooling of

interest
Equity in net eamngs for the year
Share in declared dividends
Dis|)osal through share swap
Liquidation of investment in Belle Bay City

(5,182,793)                    (5 ,876,945)

553,365
Ilo,940

(129,896)
(28J46)

288,730

(28,143)

433,565
Balance at end of 4,667,7cO 5,182,793)

(Forvard)
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2013                                      2012

(ln Thousands)
Accumulated equity in dividends declared on Parent

referred shares held b associates                                                      I                      P]47,590
Share in cumulative translation of an associate 26,393)
Share in unrealized gain (Jos§) on AFS financial assets

of associates:
Balance at beginning ot` year
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted under pooling of

Interest
Disposal through shale swap
Share durin

20,386                             (25,976)

Balance at end of ear                                                                                                   12,488                               20.3 86
Total                                                                                                                                      I,136,879                        6,393 ,929
Less allowance for im aiment in value                                                                     141,924                            141,924

994,9S5                        6,252,005
Less equity in cost of Parent Company shares held by

associates (see Note 23):
Preferred
Common

450,937
2,Sol                            280.759
2,SOL                                731,696

Less deferred income on intercompany sale of "Gcl
shares b Parent Com hil  (see Note 33)                                                                                        42.211

P992,454                    P5,47 8,098

Investments  in Associates
The details of carrying values of the investments accounted for under the equity method, advances
and subscriptions payable are as follous:

2013
Ca rl.ying                                                     S ubscription

Values                   Advances                      Pa

Publicly listed:
Pacific Online
APC

Closely held:
Others

F836,480
77'422

(1n Thousarids)

iP-
3,675,116                    (3,675,000)

F992.4S4                 P3 706,490 P3,720,928

Carrymg                                                       Subscription
Values                    Advances                        Pa

Publicly listed:
Sinophil
Highlands Prime
Pacificonlirie
APC

Closely held:
Others

P3,464.526
999,625
805,434
77,422

13 I,091

(In Thoilsands)

P3,526
29,319

(P3,6 I I ,456)

3 ,675 ` 102                     (3 ,675,000)

29,398 45,928)
P5,478,098                   P3 ,737,345 7,332,384
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The market values of investments in associates which are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange
are as  follows:

2013                              2012

APC
Pacific Online
Highlands Prime
Sinophil

an Thuusonds)

P2,170,103               P2,969,235
1,255,015                   I.178,549

1`274,324
I,082,804

Condensed financial information of the following significant associates is shown below:

2013                              2012

APC:
Current assets
N oncurent assets
Cunent lia bilities
N oncurenl liabilities
Revenue
Expenses
Net income (loss)

Pacific Online:
Cunent assets
N oneurent assets
Cunent liabilities
Noncurrent  liabilities
Revenue
Expenses
Net income

Hi ghlands Prime:
Cinrrent assets
Noncunent assets
Cunent liabilities
NomulTent liabilities
Revenue
Expenses
Net income

Sinophil:
Cfurrent assets
Noncunent assets
Current I iabi lilies
Noncurrent liabilities
Revenue
Expenses
Net income

(In Thousands)

P90,991                   P177,26l
277,079
105,253
79,850
11,290
77,651

(66,817)

1,417,650
663,343
551,739
84'S56

1'677'908
I,240,444

323,704

323,437
148,216

loo,465
368,951
339,871
104,5 14

I,801,663
605,766
778.221
53,229

1,63 I.002
1.007,123

406,781

2.003,776
2.034,621
1.202,902

80.893
521.486
283`558
32,178

30,827
I,995,832

56,122
105,650
33,324

I.592,002
I.567,953

immlimmilliiiiiiimii\IiniirmmiiI
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/Hves/meH/s !.H Sj.#op4!./.   Parallax and SLW (wholly owned subsidiaries)  acquired additional
interest  in Sinophil on April 23, 2013  for a total consideration of p340.0 million.   The acquisition
of additional shares resulted to acquiring a  controlling interest of the Company in Sinophil thus,
accounting for its investments  in the  latter as investment in subsidiary.   The pooling Of interest
method was applied since ParaLlax, SLW and Sinophil are entities under common control.  The
excess of cost over Sinophil's net assets at the time of acquisition amounting to
P252.0 million is reeorded in equity as "Excess of cost over net assct value of an investment."  As
a result Of acquisition of additional shares` the effective ownership in Sinophil had increased to
58.1% as at December 31, 2013.

/#vestwer!/S i.71 Hi.g4/anc7s Pri.me.   On August  12, 2013, the Parent Company entered into a share
swap agreement with SM Land, Inc. wherein the Parent Company's investment in Highlands
Prime with a total of 804,557,877 shares were exchanged for 108,615,313  SM Prime shares of SM
Land, Inc.   The said transaction resulted in a gain amounting to P772.2 million.

The investments in shares of stock of Highlands Prime with total carrying value of p650.9 million
as at December 31, 2012, are pledged as security for the Company's loans payable (see Note  19).

/#vesme.H/ ;.„ Paci#c O#/jHe.   Pacific Online is engaged in lottery in Visayas and Mindanao.   On
June  18, 2012, the SEC approved Pacific Online's 50% stock dividend declaration with record
date Of July 4, 2012 and payment date of July 25, 2012.

The Company received 27,940,938 new shares and now owns a total of 66,947,356 Pacific Online
shares.   The Company's percentage of ownership in Pacific Online did not change after the receipt
of stock dividends.   Investments in shares of stock of pacific Online with total carrying value of
P420.4 million as at December 31, 2012, are pledged as security for the Company's loans payable
(see Note  19).

As at March 8, 2014. the Parent Company's effective ownership in Pacific Online is increased to
38% after series of acquisition subsequent to December 31, 2013.

/wvestw?ew/ /.# Be//e Bq); C/.ty.   Belle Bay City's major development project is a  l9-hectare mixed-
use real estate development along Roxas Boulevard on a rcolaimed land in Manila Bay.   On
June 27, 2003, the BOD of Belle Bay City approved the resolution to amend its articles of
incolporation to shorten its corporate term from 50 years to end on January 31, 2004.  The
stockholders of Belle Bay City ratifled the resolution on July  10, 2003.  On January 27. 2005, the
SEC approved the dissolution of Belle Bay Gty.   In relation to the dissolution, the Parent
Company partially received land with carrying value of p252. I  million in 2005.   In 2007, the
Parent Company received additional land as part of its distributive share in Belle Bay City worth
P12.9 million.   The land was conveyed to Sinophil as payment of advances.   On December 6,
2011, the Company has sold I,640 square mcter land with carrying value of p27.4 million to Light
Rail Transit Authority a,RTA) for the construction of the guideway and concrete posts for the
LRT  I  Cavite Extension Project which is being implemented by LRTA.  Gain on sale amounting
to I 10.2 million is presented under "Other revenue" account in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 24).   On November 11, 2012, the Company received additional
land as full payment of liquidating dividends from Belle Bay City amounting to Pl ,054.2 million
(see Note  15).   As a result, the Company dereeognized its investment in and advances to Belle Bay
City with a total carrying value of p513.4 million, prior to the receipt of the liquidating dividends,
and recognized a gain on liquidating dividend in the consolidated statements Of comprehensive
income amounting to P539.7 million in 2012.

iiiiimmliiiimiiimiiiliiiimimi"miiiimm
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/;?ve:sAments fro  pyDC'.   On June  l8,  2012, WDC  sold parcels of land to sM              opment
Corporation, a related party.   Gain on sale of land amounted to P400.0 million.   As a result of the
transaction,  the Company recognized an after tax gain of` Pl 31.6 million presented as part of
"Equity in net earnings of associates" account in the 2012 consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

AllowanceforDoubtfulAccouutsofAdvanncestoAAssociates
Movement in allowance for doubtful accounts determined using specifro identification method is
as flfrow:

2013                               2012

Balance at begifining of year
Disposal during the year
Provision during the year (see Note 29)
Liquidation of investment in Belle Bay City

qn Thousands)

P159,893                   P150,582

(14,660)
10,633

Balance at end of ear                                                                                  11145,233                     P 159,893

13.  IIeld-to-maturity IDvestments

This pertains to the Company's investment in SMIC Series C 6.0000% and Series D 6.9442%
fixed rate retail bonds.  The retail bonds were purchased and issued on July 16, 2012 at face value
and will mature 7 and 10 years from the issue date, respectively.   Interest payments are scheduled
sem-annually.

Interest income earned on the HTM investments amounted to P38.7 million and Pl 7.9 million in
2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 28).

14.  Available-for-sale Financial Assets

This account consists of:

2013                             2012

Shares of stock:
Quoted
Unquoted

Club shares

(In Thousands)

Pl,619,455                     P22,141
65,158                           2,758
89,180                           3,720

793                      P28,619

The Company intends to hold these investments indefinitely in response to liquidity requirements
or changes in market conditions.
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Movement  in AFS  financial  assets consists of:

2013                              2012

Cost
Balance at begiming of year
Acquisition through share swap (see Notes  12

and 34)
Assets of subsidiary accounted under pooling of

interest (see Note  12

ITn Thousands)

F34,3 06                     P34`3 06

1,775,566

I,764,957
Balance at end of ear3 574,829                       34,3 06

Uurealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year
Increase (decrease) in fair value during the year

-nct of tax

14,868                            8,585

205,653 6,283
Balance at end of 190'785

ALlowance for impairment in value
Balance at beginning of year
lmpairment of asset of a subsidiary

accounted under ooling of interest

20,555                       20,55 5

I,589,696
Balance at end of ear                                                                       1,610,251                         20,555

P1,773,793                     P28,619

AFS financial assets with total carrying value of P23.0 million as at December 31, 2012 are

pledged as security for the Company's loans payable (see Note 19).

AFS financial assets also include 46,381,600 shares Of Legend lntemational Resort H.K.
(LIR-HK) of Sinophil that has been fully impaired as of December 31. 2011  (see Note 34).

15.  Investment Properties

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

Entertainment and Resort building - construction in
progress (CIP) (see Note 21 )

Hotel buildings - CIP
see Note  12

(1n Thoilsands)

Pl ,817,424              P3 ,089,734
I,353,807

141,283                    I,141,283

958,707              P5 ,5 84, 824

Investment praperties consist of entertainment and resort facilities still under construction
(see Note 33) and land intended for lease.

In 2012, the Company received 42,166 square meters of land as liquidating dividends from Belle
Bay City amounting to Pl ,054.2 million and paid transfer taxes and registration fees amounting to
Plo. I million which were capitalized under `.Land" account presented as part of "Investment
Properties".   The Company also paid P63.2 million of capital gains tax (CGT) under protest in
relation to the receipt of land (see Note 30).
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As at December 31, 2013  and 2012, borrowing costs amounting to Pl 11.0 million and
P201.9  million,  respectively,  were capitalized as part of investment properties (see Note 21 ).   The
annual rates used to determine the amount of borrowing costs for capitalization was 3.8% and
2.17% in 2013 and 2012,  respectively.   Movements in  investment properties ai.e as follows:

2013                              2012

Balance at beginning Of year
Additions
Assets of a subsidiary accounted under pooling of

Interest (see Note  12)
Capitalized borrowing cost
Derecognized asset under finance lease

(see Note 3 I )
uidatin dividend see Note  12

(ln Tl.ousands)

P5,584.824              P2,43 4,194
3,919,175                   I,894,580

394,210
Ill,023                     201,900

(7,050,525)
I,054,150

Balance at end of P2,9S8,707              P5 ,5 84,824

Land, hotel and entertainment and resort buildings amounting to P2,642.3 million and
P5,274.4 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were mortgaged as security for
the Company's long-term loans payable (see Note 21 ).

Construction cost of Entertainment and Resort building phase 1 amounting to P7. I  billion as of
December 31, 2013 accounted for under finance lease was dereeognized.   Related estimated
liability on coustruetion costs representing estimated cost to complete building phase I  amounted
to P2.2 billion as of December 31, 2013.   Resulting gain on finance lease amounted to P2.3  billion
and separately shown in the 2013  consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The carrymg value of the investment properties approximates the aggregate fair value as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.   The fair values of investment properties were determined by an
independent, professionally qualified appraiser.  The fair values rapl.esent the amount at which the
assets could be exchanged bctween a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a knowLedgcablc, willing
seller in an arm's-length transaction at the date Of valuation.

16.  Property and Equipment

The rollforward analysis of this account follows:

Once
FlirDlfure,

Flnures abl]     Coiirfurdon.
EaulDmen.           lI+I]roeres.

MachLiiery     ColidoDIDlom
alid              Ude aol]   TTaoxportytloo

Ba`ILDni.nt     Lnt}rovemeiitg            EaulDment

(ln ThDusan.Is|

P|88,914
37,78

a
226JZ89

Land add
L^asehold

Lint)rev.n.in

P2S3.463
I.128

¢J„3
252J48

Cost
BBaloaceatbcctmingofycar
Addjfro
lf"RE5"
ReclassifrcatioDsrfuiLsiatmnls
Balance at cnd of vcai
^ccumitated D.pTedotlon,

Anortlzatloll and hopaLmeD. Loss
BBalanci:8tbc6mlngofycar
D~epJrccloljonandom}rlizmion

fu de ycaf (sac Note 27)
Djspch
RRedassifrcanioD=/adiuauanents
Ballaace o1 cad Of `¢ar
LinJwhvdr

Z3S,263                     lsz.063

4.866                        7.63.

264
240J9,
I I I JIS5

1!60.095                 174fl7.
-|m2

OO;8zii               O8-ro
4.49S                           I,4Z,

243.769                     39J04

l!13jz7                    645.4

13Jlo                        4A93
u6SS3)                  (38P6S)
rl5J64'                   I.tl7
i65`i2o                  3zSn
\i8i649                 p6ias

\iij.5]                 \si\82             uesoA85
224.                          -                 4lBzl

-           68Jm
()OZ)                                  -                           3.Z70

78C98                          a.082                     84S.690
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Office
Mach)ncry       Contommium                                                     Fuml"r®,

md                 Units and       TTtLnaportalloil            F"rures and         Conrfuc7ioTi-
Lena and

Leasehold
lnpevermts

P,-3TSO|
20,845

(5.189

-S3.463

Co,'
Balance al beLannmg of year
Add`tions
Dispesal
Rccl8sslficallon9 (eec Note   I 8

Efl`iiomenl       Tn„  overrmts              Eo`ltotrmt

(In  ThoIIannds)

P I  70.262
2.445

-                  OJ46)
16:207                     acr549t

188.914                        260,095                           74,874

W3rs2S                   P7.23]                P9 , 9.69S
3,S3Z                                    363                            27,185

-             (3%t
-                   (68j i 8i                 ar,0497

]] `05]                              S.O&2                       859`485

^ceIlmolat.4 DEprecintlon.
^m.rtlzalioo and lm|)alrmenl Lose

Balance  al  bc(*nTiii7(; or)nan

Daprcct8lion  aTid dnroTtization

t`)r the year (see Note 27)
Digiv
Reclassifica.iol.a (6cc  Note   I 8)

Balame 81 end of year
Ne.  Book VahJe

4.969                           4,292

(3,346\

3,143                         4fil                         13"1

0,4 I bl                            -                  (69058
Z35,Z63                        I s2.06\                        18S ,52.7

JO,926

(3,346)
(72.4741

699.202

P'60,28)

Allowance for impairment loss on property and equipment amounted to P 186.3 million as at
December 31, 2013  and 2012.

The Company has disposed of certain property and equipment at a gain of p72.0 million and
PO.6 million in 2013  and 2012, respectively (see Note 29).

In 2012, management intended to sell the Company's previous office space in Pasig City.
Cousequently, the carrying's value amounting to Pl I.6 million as at December 31, 2012 was
reelassified to "Other assets held for sale" and presented as part of "Prepayments and other assets"
under "Other assets" account in the 2012 consolidated statement of financial position
(see Note  18).

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment which are still being used amounted to
P298. I  m]llion and P312.4 million as at Dcoember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   The
Company has no idle assets as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

17.  Intangil)Ie Asset

Intangible asset pertains to the "License" of PLAI with a canying value of p5,261.2 million.
PLAI is a grantee by the PAGCOR of a license to operate integrated resorts, including casinos.
PLAI's License runs concurrent with PAGCOR's Congressional Franchise. set to expil'e in 2033
(see Note 34).

On April  14, 2011, Belle has issued 2.7 billion new common shares valued at Pl .95 per share
(`.shares swap") in exchange for shareholdings in PLAI constituting  100% of the outstanding
capital stock of PLAI.    The transfer and valuation of Belle for the shares swap was approved by
SEC and Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) on October  16, 2010 and October 4, 2011,
respectively.   The directly related attributable costs amounting to P20.5 million were charged
against additional paid-in capital.

The License with total carrying value of P5,261.2 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is
pledged as security for the Company's long-term loans payable (see Note 21).
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18.  Other Assets

This account consists of:

2013                              2012

Input VAT -net of allowance for probable loss of
P3.4 rillion in 2013  and P I.3  million in 2012

Advances to :
Contractors -net of allowance for doubtful

accounts ofp14.9 million  in 2013 and
P12.7  nrillion   in 2012

Officers and employees -net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of p3.5 million in 2013
and2012

Prepayments and other assets -net of allowance for

probable loss of p57.2 million in 2013 and
P59.4 million in 2012

CWT -net of allowance for probable loss of
P4.3  million in 2013  and 2012

Debt service reserve and accrual account
(see Note 2 I )

Supplies inventory -net of allowance for decline in
value of a 18.7  million in 2013  and 2012

qn Thousands)

P439,569                  P3 23.94 8

395,510                        72,476

5,106                           7,207

151,094                        134,060

60,423                       177,520

40,658                       3 8,006

3,778                          5 ,067
Pl ,096,138                  P75 8,284

Input VAT pertains to the VAT arising from ongoing construction of the investment properties
and land under development.

CWT peltaius to the withholding tax related to the goods sold and services rendered by the
Company.

Prepayments and other assets pertain to various prepaid expenses such as insurance, commission,
subscription and refundable deposits for various contracts.  This also include the "Other assets
held for sale" relating to sale of company's office space in Pasig City (see Note 16).

Advances to contractors are noninterest-bearing and are expected to be applied against future
billings.

Advances to officers and employees are noninterest-bearing and are normally liquidated within a
year.

Debt service reserve and accrual account represents funds maintained with balance at least equal
to the next principal and interest payments based on the Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement
(OLSA) covenants (see Note 21).

Project development costs consist of construction costs of the diaphragm wall, consultancy,
architectural and design and other related expenses and fees incurred by Belle Bay Plaza in the
initial phase of the development of a 6-hectare reelaimed propert)/ Of Belle Bay City which is
located in the seaward-side of Roxas Boulevard, City of Manila.  Allowance for impairment was
provided on the entire amount of the project amounting to P2,136.8 million as at
December 31, 2013  and 2012.
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19.  Loans Payable

Loans payable represents peso-denominated loans obtained from local banks with interest ranging
from 4.3% to 5.3% in 2013  and 3.1% to 4.6%  in 2012.   Loans payable have historically been
renewed or rolled-over.   The carrying values of nonfinancial assets pledged as collateral for loans
outstanding as at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Club shares (see Note  I I)                                                                                                           P2.074,134
Shares of stock of Highlands prime (see Note  I 2)                                                             650.925
Shares of stock ofpacific online (see Note  I 2)                                                                  420`400
Real estate for sale (see Note 10)                                                                                                   75,076
AFs financial assets (see Note  l4)                                                                                              22,953

P3,243,488

Loans availed in 2013 amounting to P 180.0 million and still outstanding as at December 31, 2013
are unscoured.

The interest expense on loans payable charged to operations amounted to P40.0 million and
F75.2 million in 2013  and 2012, respectively (see Note 28).

intcre§t expense on loans payable amounting to nil and P26.5 million was capitalized as part of
investment properties in 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note  15).

20.  Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

This account consists Of:

2013                               2012

Trade
Accrued exp enses :

Land transfer fees
Selling
Interest
Others

Advances from related parties (see Note 33)
Deferred income
Nontrade (see Note 10)
Customers' d

an Tl.oilsand.s)

Pt,188,I I0               P1,033,253

3:2;i;i               2:;:::;

10,907                        42. 809
134,500                        64, 864

77,539                       183.329
200,496
425,996                      160,994

559                        28 496
P2,469,852              P I.869,808

I      Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally on a 90 days' ten.

•      Accrued expenses -others mainly pertain to accruals of taxes, relit, utilities and professional
fees which are normally settled with an average temi of 30 to 90 days.

-      Deferred income amounting to p200.4 million as of December 31, 2103 representing
unamortized discount on refundable deposits related to lease transactions (see Notes 31
and34).
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I      Nontrade payables mainly include payable relating to the purchase of land (see Note  lo).

These lands wel.e acquired from various land owners in Tagaytay City, Batangas and Cavite.
These are noninterest-bearing and al.e due and demandable.   This also includes output VAT

payable amounting to nil and I 10.3  million as at Deeember 31 ` 2013  and 20]2, respectively,
Customers'  deposits include collections received from buyers for projects with pending
reeognition of sale.

21.  Long-term Debt

This account consists of:

2013                               2012

United States qus) Dollar floating
rate notes (FRNs)

an Thouscinds)

P977,210                  P903 ,58 I
800                 3 ,927,000

Less debt issuance costs
1,513,010                   4,830,581

10,210                         Ill,416

Pl,502,800               P4,719,165

FRNs
bsTollardenominatedborrowingsof22.Omillionistranslatedusingtheexchangerateof
P44.40 to USS I.0 and P41.05 to USS I.0 at Dcoember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   This
bonowing, amounting to US$22.0 million. is part of the principal amount of USS150.0 million
that was originally due in May 2002 but was extended until May 2014.  'I`hese FRNs are in bearer
form and are issued in denominations of approximately US$250,000, with coupons attached at the
time of issue.

The following are the significant terms and features Of the US$22.0 million FRNs:

Interest Payment 2% p.a. over 6-month London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) payable semi-annually in arrears in May and
November of each year, starting May 2003 and up to
maturity.

Redemption at the OptionOftheParentCompany On certain conditions provided for in the terms of the FRNs.

Repunhase The Parent Company and any of its subsidiaries may
purchase the FRNs provided that all unmatured coupons
relating thereto are purchased therewith.

Reissuance All FRNs redeemed or purchased and any unmatured
coupons attached to or surrendered with them shall be
cancelled and may not be reissued or resold.
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Restrictions and Covenants The Parent Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other

person will  not create or permit to be outstanding any security
u|)on the whole or any part of its undertaking. assets or
revenues, present or future, to secure any relevant
indebtedness or any guarantee of or indemnity in respeet of
any relevant indebtedness according to the FRNs equal and
ratable security or without having rust obtained the approval
of the Noteholders by extraordinary resolution.
The Parent Company also ensures that its payment
obligations in respect of the FRNs rank at least parj passu
with all its other unseeured obligations in respect of any
indebtedness incurred by it under arrangements entered into
after the date of issue of the FRNs.

Interest expense on FRNs amounted to P34.0 million, P27.7 million and P26. I  million in 2013,
2J12 and 2011, respectively (see Note 28).

Loans Payable
On December I, 2010, the Parent Company @orrower) obtained a loan facility in the amount of
P5,600.0 million from BDO (Lender) for the purpose of financing the construction of
entertainment and resort facilities.   The first drawdown amounting to F570.0 million was made on
Arill3,20ll.

TThe following are the significant terlns and features of the P5,600.0 million Loan facility:

ihawdowus The loan facility is available any time and from time to time
during the period beginning on Decent)er 1, 2010 and ending
on the earliest of: (i) the date occurring 2 years thereafter, (ii)
the date the Commitment is fully drawn by the Borrower, or

(iii) the date the Commitment is cancelled or terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the OLSA.   Any amount of
the commitment that remains undrawn after the availability
period shall be automatically cancelled.   On October 29, 2012,
BDO has approved the extension of availability period from
December  I, 2012 to April  13, 2014, subject to the terms and
conditions relating to the Availability Period remaining the
same, including the requirement for the Borrower to pay all
applicable commitment fees.

Repayment The Borrower shall repay the principal of the Loan in 21
couseoutive quarterly installments on each Repayment Date
commencing on the 24th month from the hitial Drawdown
Date.

Interest Payment The Lender shall determine the interest rate that would apply
for the relevant interest period, based on the applicable interest
reference rate plus the applicable spread, and promptly give
notice thereof to the Borrower and BDO -Trust alid
Investments Group, the Security Trustee.   Interest on the
unpaid principal amount of each Advance at the interest rate on
each interest payment date for the interest period then ending
should be paid by the Borrower.
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The embedded early redemption and prepeyment options are clcarly and closely related to the host
debt contract; thus, do not require to be bifurcated and accounted for separately in the host
contract.

The Parent Company's loans payable is secured by all of the Company's lease and project
receivables, an assignment of all rights. title and interest of (he Company to its existing project
agreements and performance guarantee and first ranking real estate mortgage on the present and
future real assets with the Lender (see Notes  12,15 and  17)`

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets pledged as collateral for these loans are as follows:

2013                              2012

qn Thousands)

Entertainment and resort building, and hotel
buildings classified under "Investment

properties„
(see Note  15)

Intangible asset (see Note  I 7)
Land classified under "Investment properties"

(see Note  15)

Pl,817,424               P4,443,541
5,261,186                    5,261,186

824,902                      830,812
P7,903,S12            P lo,535,539

Interest expense on loans payable from OLSA amounting to nil and P156.7 million in 2013 and
2012, respectively, were capitalized as part of investment properties (see Note  15).

OLSA amounting to P3.391.2 million were preterminatcd in 2013.  The Company used the
proceeds from the release of Escrow fund to settle the said loans.

Debt JJs#a#ce Car/.   As at Deeember 31, 2013 and 2012, loan transaction costs consisting of
documentary stamp tax, professional fees and underwriting fees amounting to Plo.2 million and
I I I I .4 million, respectively, wel.e capitalized and presented as deduction from the related loan
balance.  Amortization of debt issuance cost in 2013 and 2012 amounting to P12.9 million and
P18.7 million, respectively, was capitalized as part of "Investment properties" account in the
consolidated statement of financial position (see Note  15).

Cove77a«/s.   OLSA contains, among others, provisious regarding the maintenance of certain
financial ratios such as debt service coverage ratio, debt-to-equity ratio, current ratio and
maintenance of debt service reserve and accrual account (see Note  19).  As at December 31, 2013
and 2012, the Parent Company has complied with these covenants.

P57,000
79.800

102.600
176.7oo
119.700

P535.800
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22.  Nontrade Liability

ln 2013, AB Leisure Global lnc. (ABLGI) agreed to advance P4,000.0 million (the ..ABLGI
Advance") to the Company as funding for the constmction of the casino building.   Tei.ms and
repayment periods of the ABLG] advances will be determined upon the signing of the
implementing agreement.   As of March 8, 2014, the Company and ABLGI have not yet finalized
its impLementing agreement.

23.  Equrty

Cal] ital Stock
The composition of the Company's shares of capital stock is as follows:

Z013                                                                             2012

Number                                                         Number
of shares                    Amount                   of shares                     Amoun(

Preferred stuck:
Authorized -Pl  par value                            6,000,000,000        P6,000,000,000           6,000`000.000        P6.000,000,000
Issued                                                                   I 0001 000            I,000.000.000            I,000,000,000

Common:
Authorized -Fl  par value
Issued

14,000,000,OcO      1!14,000,000,000          14,000,000,000      F14,000,000,000
559,382,799         10,559?82,799         10,559,382,799         10,559,382,799

Movements in issued comlnon stock are as follows:

2013                              2012

qn The.Isands)

Balance at begiming of year                                                      Plo,559,383              P9` 170,770
Issunce durin see Note 36 1

Flo,559,383            P 10,55 9, 3 83

On September 29, 2011 ` the Parent Company's stock rights offering are completed with a
subscription of I.508 billion common shares.   Stockholders were entitled to 1  right for every 6
shares held as of September 2, 2011 at an exchange offering price of P3.0 per share.   The net

proceeds of approximately P4.5 billion from this offer will be used by the Parent Company to
partially finance the construction of its entertainment and resort facilities (see Note 34).   As at
December 31, 2011,  119,870 common shares of the total subscription have been fully paid and
issued   As at December 31, 2011, subscription receivables expected to be collected within the
mandatory period of January 30, 2012 to February 3, 2012 amounted to P2,082.9 million and is
separately shown in the 2011  consolidated statement of financial position.   The directly related
attributable costs amounting to P53 .9 million were charged against additional paid-in capital.

On February 2, 2012, the entire subscription receivable has been fully collected.
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The following are the salient features of the preferred shares:

Voti ng rights/convertibi I ity Non-voti ng and non-convert ible

Dividends 9.75% per armum, cumulative.  Holders shall be entitled to
receive out of the net profits or net assets of the Company
available for dividends when and as dcolared by the BOD.

Others All shares of preferred stock of the same class shall rank
equally and be identical in au respects regardless of series
unless otherwise specified by the BOD, and if shares of any
one series are issued at different terms, the subsequently
issued shares need not be entitled to receive dividends
previously paid on the outstanding shares of such series.

As at December 3 I , 2013 and 2012, the preferred shares are held by Sinophil.   In 2009, Sinophil
agreed to the renunciation of its rights to all past, present and future dividends.   Sinophil also
agreed to the revocation of the coupon rate originally provided for the preferred shares.

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company's registration of securities
under the Securities Regulation Code:

Date of SEC A
Authorized              Number of                        Issue/

roval                                          Shares          Shares Issued              Offer price
August 20,  1973
March  19,  1976
December 7,1990
1990
October  19, 1990
June  18,1991
1991

1992
December 7,1993
1993

January 24,  1994
August 3,  1994
August 3,  1994
June 6,1995
Febniary  14,  1995
March 8,1995
March  17,1995
March 28,1995
July 5,1995
September  I,1995
March  I,1995
September  13,1995
1995

1996

a:orward)

6,000,000,000         6,000,000,000                          PO.01
2 ,000,000,000            464,900,000

-           920,000,000
-            833,500,000

(7,000,000,000)      (8,136,216,000)
-                 3,381,840
-              47,435,860
-                 11,005,500
-             473,550.000
-               95,573,400
-            loo,000,000
-                 2,057,948

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

1.00

I.00
I.00

1.00

1.00

7.00
960,375                             10.00

-              138,257,863

I.000,000,000
-             312,068,408

2,000,000,000
-            627,068,412
-              7 8,060,262
-            loo,000,000
-              94,857,072
-             103,423,030
-              123,990,631
~             386,225,990

I.00
1.00

I.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

I.00

I.00
I.00
I.00
I.00
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Date of SEC A
Authorized               Number of                         Issue/

roval                                             Shares          S hares Issued               Offet` Price
February 21,  1997
1997

1998
March  19,  1999
April 26,  1999
April 27,  iggg
1999
2000
2001
April  14,  2011

July  18,  2011

I 8,  2011

10,000.000,000
-               57,493,686
-               36,325,586
-               16,600,000
-           450,000,000
-           3 00,000,000
-            306,109,896
-                2,266,666
-         2,402,003, I 17
-        2,700.000,000
-              119,869,990
-          I,388,613,267

14,000,000,000       10,559,382,799

in a special meeting on November 18,  1989, the stockholders approved the increase in par value of
capital stock from PO.01 to Pl .00 and the decrease in the n`rmber of shares of authorized from
8.0 billion to I.0 billion common shares.   The resulting increase in par and reduction in the
mmber of shares was approved by the SEC on October  19,  1990.

On February  14,  1995, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from I.0 billion
shares with a par value of I I.00 to 2.0 billion shares with the same par value\   Subsequently, on
March  17,  1995, the SEC approved another increase in authorized capital stocks from 2.0 billion
shares to 4.0 billion shares with tile saine par value.

On Fettruary 21,  1997, the SEC approved the increase in the autliorized capital stocks from
4.0 billion shares at a par value Of Pl .00 per share to 20.0 billion shares divided into 6.0 billion

prefdred shares and  14 billion common shares, both at P I.00 par value.

The Parent Company declared stock dividends in 1991  and  1995.   The total number Of
shareholders of the Parent Company is 2,013 and 2,157 as at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respechvely.

EauitvShareinCostofparentComDal+anvCommonSharesHeldbvAAssociates
There was no transaction that affdeted this account in 2012.

CostofparentCromDananvSharesHeldbvSubsidiaries
Details of this account as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are shown below

2013                              2012

Cost of Parent Company Common and Preferred
Held by Subsidiaries

Loss on Disposal of Parent Collpany
Common Shares Held b Subsidiaries

(1n ThoLlsands )

P2,152,792                  P492,8 73

839                       69,5 02
P2,257,63 I                  P562.3 75

imlmm"iiiiimiiiiiiimiillimi
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Parallax,  SLW,  Sinophil and other subsidiaries collectively holds 336,489,747 and 214,963,027
common shares of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   These
are presented as "Cost of Parent Company common and preferred shares held by subsidiaries" in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

RetainndEarines
TThe Company's retained earnings available for dividend declaration is adjusted to exclude
accumulated equity in nat losses of associates amounting to P4,667.7 million and P5,182.8 million
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 12), and adjustments related to finance
lease (see Note  15).   For purposes of dividend declaration, income arising from lease of casino
buildings is accounted for under operating lease similar to treatment for income tax purposes
(see Notes 30 and 31).

24.  Other Revenue

This account consists of:

2013                           2012                           2011

Amortization of discount on trade
receivables (see Note 9)

Income from forfeitures
Pemlty
Income from playing rights
col-§s ioD income
Gain on sale of investment (see Note  12)
Others

(Irl Thousands)

P32,280                P29,3 92                P54,465
10'800
8,720
3£04
1,489

3,027

13,807                       15,707

4,070                     5,056
4,014

859                          887
10.234

5,029                      9.225
P59,620                P57,17 I                 P95.574

Others pertain to revenues from revision works, sale of scrap supplies and various administrative
fees during the ycar.

25.  Cost of Real Estate and Club Shares Sold

This account consists of:

2013                          2012                          2011

Materials and labor
Cost of club shares sold
Land
Overhead and others

P58£0|
23,735
21,701

(ln Thousands)

P58,501                P119.125
25,184                    48.709
21,775                     44,341
11,692                       23,808

P115£89              P117,152              P235.983
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26.  Cost of services for Proi}erty Management

This account consists of:

2013                          2012                          2011

(lnThousands)

Power and maintenance                                                P44,255                P47,354                P52,736
Water services                                                                       16,014                   25 ,5 89                   26.093

P60,269                P72,943                P78.829

27.  General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

2013                           2012                           2011

ABLGl payments (See Note 34)
Personnel costs (scc Notes 32 and 33)
Marketing and advertising (see Note 33)
Rentals and utilities

(see Notes 31  and 33)
Depreciation and amortization

(see Note  16)
Taxes and licenses
Professiona I fees
Repairs and maintenance
Security and janitorial
Transportation and travel
Representation and entertainment
Registration fees
Cormunication
Insurance
Others

(1n Thousands)

P283'50 I                       P-                      I-
83,992                   79, 5 84                   72,984
60,240                    67,626                    51,169

41,245                     14,054                       8,727

34,939                   30,92 6                   27,059
33,906                     18,536                    20,888
22,546                      15,811                       10.098
20,280                      5 ,99 0                      6.43 5
14£79                     9,692                     9.264
4,864                     4,662                     4.474

i;;3:             :;::;              ;:::;
I £80                    2,5 62                     2.686
I,070                          822                      1,067

880                    12,074                      6.955
P642,642             P275 ,45 0             P23 3 ,065

Others pertain to office supplies, insurance, seminar fccs and association dues incurred
during the year.

Personnel Costs

2013                          20]2                          2011

Salaries and wages
Pension costs (see Note 32)

ee benefits and others

P70'833
S318

(1n The.Isands)

P61,039
4,992

13,553

P52,140
3,371

17.473

P83,992                P79, 5 84                P72.984
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28.  Interest Income and Interest Expense

The sources  of the Company's  interest  income follows:

2013                          2012                          2011

Cash in banks (see Note 8)
Cash equivalents (see Note 8):

With related banks (see Note 33)
With other banks

HTM investments (see Notes  13 and 33)
Escrow fund (see Notes 33 and 34)
Short-term investments (see Note 8)
Receivables (see Note 9)
Others

ITn Thousands)

F2,024                      P719

10,569                     81,904
514                      2,377

38,725                     17,906
4,112                      12,083

I,297

Pl.166

23,395
281

17

3,639
168                              167

P56,112               P116,453                  P28,498

The sources of the Company's interest expense follows:

2013                                2012                                2011

Loans payab le
(see Notes  19 and 33)

Long-term debt (see Note 21 )
Assigrment of receivables

(see Note 9)
Others

qn Thousands)

1140,036                        P75,171

33,9SS                        27,654

25,653                       24,097
208                            I,229

P83,313

26,114

48.547
186

852                      P128,15l                      P158,L60

29.  Other Charges-net

This account consists of:

2013                                 2012                                2011

(ln Thou.sands)

Provision for (reversal of)
allowance:
Probable loss on other assets -

net
Doubtful accounts on

receivables (see Note 9)
Doubtful accounts on

advances to assor;iates

(see Note  12)

forward)

P4,418                     P61,692

352                            2,353

10,633
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2013                                   2012                                   2011

(I n Thousands)

Impairment loss on advances
to related parties
(see Note 33)

Bank service charges
Gain on sale of propelly and

equipment (scc Note  16)
Others - net

I-                      P2,121
3,799                            11,034

(72,026)                            (612)
17,595 7,843

P-
12,880

30

P95,064                      P12.910

30.  Income Taxes

The provision for current income tax cousisls of the following:

2013                                2012                                2011

Regular corporate income tax
Capital gains tax (CGT) and final

tax on interest income
MCIT

(In Thousands)

F303,870                            F916

1,707                         64,965
13,273

P305,577 F79,154                      PIS,972

As at December 31, 2012, the carryforward benefit of MCIT amounting to P17.8 million was
claimed as tax credit against regular income tax in 2013.   As at Deeember 31, 2011, the
carTyforward benefit of NOLCO amounting to P20.3 million is claimed as deduction against
taxable income in 2012.

In 2012, provision for income tax includes CGT paid by the Company under protest for the
transfer of land from Belle Bay City amounting to P63.2 million.   The payment of.CGT was made
for the sole purpose of facilitating the prompt transfer of title from Belle Bay City to the
Collpany.   The Company believes that the imposition of CGT is improper because the transfer
was not made in the ordinary course Of business but by operation of law in lieu of the ongoing
liquidation process of Belle Bay City.

The components of the Company's nat defelTed tax liabilities are as follows:

2013                              2012

(ln ThoLisands)

Deferred tax assets:
Construction cost
Estimated liability on construction costs
Uurealized foreign exchange loss
Deferred lease income
Accrued selling expenses
Discount on trade receivables
Unrealized profit on sale of club shares

to associates

¢orward)

Pl'330'354
674,270
157,719
32,168
16,104
15,113

9'327

P-

3,878
14.715

18,975

4.221
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2013                               2012

Unamortized past Service costs
Accretion of refundable deposits
Accrued I`ent
Allowances for:

Impairment in value of property
and equipment

Doubtful accounts
Probable Losses

MCIT

P1'720
I,107

746

qn Thousands)

P635
1.157

847

55,891

12.729

9.543
17,821

628                        140,412

Deferred tax  liabilities:
Finance lease receivable
Capita lized interest expens e
Unaccreted discount on refundable deposits
Accumulated dqpreciation
Accrued rent
Capitalized rent expense
UlireaLized gain on sale of real estate
Pension asset
Unrealized gain on AFS financial asset
Deferred lease expense
Deferred income on real estate sales
Uurealized forei exchan aim - net

(2,925,664)
(33,307)
(32,726)
(29,841)
(22£38)
(18,214)
(6,274)
(3,754)
(1,222)
(1,021)

(797)

(90,292)
(4,027)

(10,019)

(797)
(492)

(I,499)
(I,099)
(9,770)

167,944

The components of the Company's telxporary differences as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 for
which deferred tax assets were not recognized follows:

2013                               2012

Allowances for:
Impairment of proj ect development costs
Probable losses
lmpairment in value of property and equipment
Doubtful accounts

(1n Thousarlds)

P2,136,820               P2,136,820
208,718                        47,948
186,303

16,487                           8,036
328               P2,192,804

The deferred tax assets of the above temporary differences amounting to P764.5 million and
P657.8 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are not recognized in the books
since management believes that it is not probable that taxable income will bc available against
which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

For income tax purposes, lease of the building structures is accounted for under operating lease
(see Note 3 I ).

II][IilliillilllunliNIuriiillniiliifllli



-62-

The reconciliation between the provision for income tax computed at statutory tax rate and the

provjsion  for income tax  shown in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income  is as
follows:

2012                                2011

2013            (AS restated)       (AS restated)

Income tax at statiitory income
tax rate of 30%

Nontaxable income
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets
Income subjected to final tax
Nondeductible expenses and others
Income subjected to capital gains tax

aid under

P|,5S5,008
(287,350)

6,,003
(16,781)
11'942

1'707

ITn Thousands)

P214,053

(135,129)
I,537

(34,886)
47,606

I,716

63,249

P67,069

(42,296)

(18,538)
12,175

5,320

E!1,333,529                P158,146                   P23,730

PhiliooineEEconomiczoneAuthoritvfpEEZA`
In 2010, the Compa[iy's pro-qualification clearance from PEZA in relation with its efforts to
secure a Tourism Economic Zone status for a portion of its flagship prQject, Tagaytay Highlands,
has been approved.   However, as at March 8, 2014, this approval has not yet been issued with a
FTesidential Proclamatiori.

On October 11, 2012, Presidential Proclamation No. 491  has been issued creating and designating
eleven parcels of land with an aggregate area of approximately 69,510 square meters located at
Aseana Business Park, Paranaque City, as Tourism Economic Zone.   Consequently, on
November 27, 2012, the Company received its Certificate of Registration from PEZA as the
developer of the Belle Grande Manila Bay Prcject.  The Company shall not be entitled to
PEZA incentives.

31.  Lease Commitments

Company as a Lessor
Lease Agreements with ABLGI
On January  14, 20] I, the Parent Company, as a lessor, entered iuto an operating lease agreement
with ABLGI for the lease of land allocable to Belle as pa`rt of its share in the remaining liquidating
assets of Belle Bay City.   The leased premises shall commence upon the execution of the lease
agreement and shall expire 10 years after the commencement date Of the lease period (earlier
between the soft opening date and turnover date) for the integrated resort complex.   During the
construetion period, from the date of execution of the lease agreement to the casino building lease
commencement date, the lessee shall pay a noTninal monthly rental of p30.25 per square meter
which is equivalent to 25% of the base rate Of p 121  per square meter and P121  per square meter
after the casino building lease commencement date to December 31, 2012.  In 2012, Belle and
ABLGI have agreed to the restructuring of the lease agreements to enable the entry of Melco
Crown Entertainment Limited (Melco).   The lease agreement with ABLGI was formally
terminated on March  13, 2013 (see Note 34).

Rent income recognized by the Company from these lease agreements with ABLGI amounted to
I 18.4 million and P62. I  million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Lease Agreement with MCE Leisure /PhiliDDines` Corporation (MCE Leisure`
On October 25, 20] 2, the Parent Company, as a lessor, entered into a lease agreement with MCE
Leisure for the lease of land and building structures to be used in the integrated casino
development project ("the Project").  The lease period is co-terminus with the operating agreement
between the Company and MCE Leisure which is effective on March 13, 2013 until the expiration
of the License on July  11, 2033.

The Company made an assessment at inception of the lease and recorded the lcase of the building
structures under a finance lease and the lease Of the land under an operating lease.

Finance Lease
The Company recognized a  finance lease receivable equivalent to the net investment in the lease.
The implicit interest rate on the finance lease was  15.75% per amum at inception of the lease.
Day  1  gain on finance lease was recognized for the excess of net investment over the construction
cost of the building structures amounting to P2,324.4 million in 2013.   The lease payments made
by the lessee are split into an interest component and a principal component using the effective
interest method.   The lease receivable is reduced by the principal received.   The interest
component of the payments is recognized as "Interest income on finance lease" in the consolidated
statement of comprehens ive income.

As at December 31, 2013, the nominal amount of minimum lease payments and the carrying value
of flnance lease receivable are as follows:

Amounts receivable under finance lease
Within one year
ln more than one year and not more than five years
ln more than five

P1,008,410
4,900,436

31,693,570

Unearned finance income
37,602,416
27,850,204

Net investment ¢resent value of the minimum lease payments)                            9,752,212
Current ortion of receivables under finance lease 341,108

Non-current ortion of receivables under finance lease                                          P9,4l I, L04

Oi)erating Lease
The Company recognized rent income on the lease of land by MCE Leisure amounting to
P157.1  milljon in 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, the minimum lease payments of the Company on the lease on the land
are as follous:

Amounts receivable under ot)erating lease
WTh one year
ln more than one yea`r and not more than five years
In more than five

P97,874
475,644

ears                                                                                                                3 ,076 ,23 6

CulTent ortion of reeeivables under o
3,649,754

leas e                                                             97,874
Non-current portion of receivables under o lease                                            P3,551,880
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Company as a Lessee
ODerating Lease
The Company entered into a lease agreement for a parcel of land situated in Aseana Business
Park, Parafiaque City.   The 20218 square meter land area lease shall be for a period of 10 years
commencing on April 23, 2010, inclusive of two years constniction period.   Rental payments are
subject to escalation as stated in the agreement.   The contract may be renewed or extended by
written agreement of the parties and upon such terms and conditions that are mutually acceptable
to them   The Company also paid P4.4 million refundable deposit whieh formed part of
"Prepeyments and other assets" account under "Other assets" in the consolidated statements of

financial position (see Note  18).   On April  15, 2012, the parties agreed to extend the lease term for
an additional  15  years ending on April 22, 2035.

As at December 3 I , 2013 and 2012. the operating lease cost amounting to P27.3  million and
P22.3 million were capitalized to leasehold iniprovements as the Company has started
construction of the integrated resort (see Notes  16 and 34).

TThe Company entered into an operating lease agreement with SM Land, lnc., a related party,
covering its new office space (see Note 33).   The lease shall be for a period Of 5 years
commencing on August  I, 2012.   Rental payments are subject to annual escalation adjustments.
Total rent expense charged to operations relating to this transaction amounted to P 10.5 million and
Pi I  million in 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 27).   The Company also paid P2.4 nil"on
refundable deposit which is included as part of "Other assets" account in the consolidated
sstatements of financial position (see Note  18).

Consequently, in July 20] 2, the Company ended its lease agreement on its old office space in
Pasig City.  Total rent expense charged to operations relating to this transaction amounted to
PO.7 million and Pl 2 million in 2012  and 2011  respectively (see l`tote 27).

The Company also has several operating lease arrangements on parking lots, machineries, office
and transportation equipment.  Total rent expense charged to operahous relating to these lease
agreements amounted to Pl . I  miLliolL I I.6 million and P3. I  trillion in 2013, 2012, and 201 I ,
respectively (see Note 27).

The future m]nimum rental payments by the Company under the operating lease agreements are as
follows:

2013                              2012

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
After more than five

(ln Tho.isands)

P39,404                    P3 8 ,024
164,593                       170,555
936,007                  I,668,745

Pl,140,004              Pl,877,324
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32.  Pension Costs

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covenng all regular and permanent employees.
The beneflts are based on employees' projected salaries and number of years of service.   Costs are
determined in accordance with the actuarial study, the latest of which is dated December 31, 2013.

The following tables summarize the components of peusien costs recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and the pension liability recognized in the consolidatecl
statements of financial position.

Pension Costs (recoenized in+"General and Administrative EXDenses")

2013                                2012                               2011

Cunent service cost
Interest cost on dermed benefi(

obligation
Interest income on plan assets
Interest on the effect of asset

an TI.ousands)

P5,578                       P5,2 3 9

3,900                           3,459

(4,166)                         (3,7 L9)

613

P4,832

3,266

(4,727)

P5,318                       P4,992                       P3,37l

Pension Exoeus e (hcome) (recognized in "Other Comprehensive Income")

2013                                2012                                2011

Actuarial (gain) loss on defined
benefit obligation

Re-mcasurement (gain) loss on
plan assets

Re-measurement (gain) loss on
changes in the effect of the
asset ceilin

(1n Thousands)

ai4,455)                      p3,427                      G! 1 , 3 20)

(2'439)                          2,001

Pension Asset

2013                               2012                               2011

(ln Thousands)

Defined b enefit obligation                                 F62,Z 70                    P62,493                     P5 7,65 8
Fair value Of lan assets                                         75 908                       64,2 3 9 61.440
Funded status -surplus                                         (13,638)                      (I,746)                      (3,782)
Effect of asset ceilin 123                                  103                                  214

P12,SIS P I ,643
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2013                                 2012                                 2011

Balance at the beginning of the

year
Interest cost
Current service cost
Benefits paid from plan assets
Actuarial Loss (gain) due to:

Experi ence adjustments
Actuarial loss(gain) on

changes in financial
assunptious

Actuarial loss (gain) on
changes in demographic

qn Thousanuls)

F62,493                     P5 7,65 8
3,900                           3,459
5,578                           5,239

(5,246)                       ( 7 , 290)

(6,S61)                        10,890

P2,106                      (P I ,559)

P52,684
3,266
4.832

(I,804)

(I,320)

FL

F62,2 70                     P62,493                     P57,65 8

Changes in the FVPA are as follows:

2013                                2012                                2011

Balance at the beginning of the
year

Interest income
Contributions
Benefits paid
Re-measurement

qn Thousands)

P64,239                    P6 I ,440                    P49,825
4,166                              3,719                             4.727

10310                              8,371                              8.372

(5,246)                        (7,290)                        ( I,804)
320

P75,908                     P64,239                     P61.440

Movements in the pension liability (asset) are as follows:

2013                                2012                                2011

Balance at the beginning Of the
year

Retirement exp ense
Total amount recognized in other

comprehensive income
Contnbutions

(1n Thotlsands)

(Pl ,643)                    (P3 ,5 68)
5,318                           4,992

(S,880)                          5,304

Pl,643
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Defined benefit expense (income) recognized in "Other Comprehensive Income" are as follows:

2013                               2012                               2011

qn Thousanals)

Accumulated other
comprehensive income,
beginning of the year

Pension ex Income)
(P6.832) (P12,136)                   Glo,710)

5,304                        (I,426
Accumulated other

comprehensive income, end

(P6,832 (PL2,136)

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date, applicable to the penod over which the obligation is to be settled.

There are no expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plan in 2014.

The unfunded obligation and experience adjustment for the current period and for the two preceding
periods follows:

2013                                2012                                2011

Defined benefit obligation
Fair value Of

P62'270
Lan assets                                            75 908

(ln Tliousands)

P62,493
64,239

P57,658
61,440

Funded status -Surplus                                         (13,638)                       ( 1,745)                       (3,782)
Experience adjustments                                            (6,561)                       10,890                         ( I,321)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:

2013                               2012
Investments in fiixed income securities                                                     66%                            6 L%
Investments in unit investment trust funds                                             15%                           36%
Others                                                                                                                 19%                              3%

I 000/o                          100%

The Company's retirement fund is in the form Of a trust being maintained by a trustee bank.

The carrying value and fair value of the fund amounted to P75.9 million as at December 31, 2013.
The fund's assets are comprised of: (i) cash in bank; (ii) investment in treasury bonds of

government securities,  equity securities of private colporatious, mutual funds and unit investment
trust funds and (iii) loans and receivables from individuals.

Contributions and withdrawals in the fund in 2013 amounted to Plo.3 mimon and P5.2 Inillion,
respectively, and were approved by the Company's Chief Financial Officer and President.

The fund has no investments in debt and equity securities of the Company.
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The principal assumptions used in determining pension benefit obligations  for the Company's plan
are shown below:

2013                                2012                                2011

Discount rates                                                          4.89%                        6.24%                        6.00%
Future salary increases                                          6.00%                        6.00%                        7.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes Of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase
(decrease) in

Basis points                    Amount
Discount rate

Salary increase rate

loo                      Gl,717)

(loo)                        101,925
loo                             I,259

(loo)                         (I,180)

Shown below are the maturity analyses of the undiscounted benefit payments:

Year                                                                                                                              2013                             2012

2013
2014
2015

2016
2017
2018
2019-2023

qn Thr)usands)

I-                   P6,53 7
281

2,108
16'012
17'865
5'258

23,208

The tax exempt status of the plan was approved by the BIR on September 29.  1998.

2,I  L8

16.291

16.251

4.868
44.498

33.  Related Party Transactions

Related parties are enter|)rises and individuals that has the ability to control directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Company, including holding companies, and subsidiaries, or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions.   Associates and individuals owning,
directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Com|)any that gives them significant
influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the
Company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with
these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form.
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Other Transactjous with Associates and Related Comi)anies
The Company has the following significant related party transactieus with associates and other
related parties :

Transaclion       Oulslanding
Amounls                Balance

( 111  TIIousands)

Relaled  Parl

APC

Bcllc  Jai  A!ai

HighlarLds  Pri mc

Belle Boy Gty

WDC

Others

Relalionshil]                          Trans8cti`>n

Assoc.ate                                Acl`/ances ro                        Z013

associale                      2012

A8sociatc                              Advances to                      Z013
assoc`alc                       2012

^ssociale                             Advances to                      2013
associote                       2012

Commission                      Z013
Income                          2() 12

(se. Note 24)
Adv@nccs to

asso®atc                      Z013
2012

Associatc                             Advances to                      2013
associale                      2012

Assonate                           Advances to                    201.
associate.s                    2012

Tngaytay H`gtLlands       Wzth  cuiTiiTLon set of     ^dvapceg to  other          20L3
direclon                                      related parlics          2012

Countryclut)                   Wi7h cormonse`of    Advmce8 to other        2013
directon                                      rehled plulic*          2012

Wilh common sctof    Advances to other        2013
directors                                       Rlnted|)utlcs          2UL2

WLth colrmon set of     Advances from              Z013
dircctors                                     other reined            2012

patles

B€lJe Jai-Ahai                   ^ssociole                           Advmces from              2013
associate                      20 L2

SLnophil Lelsuc and     SubsidLary of sioophil  Advances from               Z013
Rcsolls corp.                                                                    other rel8led             2012

pert,es

Thgrytoy Highlmds      Wiih col]`monset of     Advances from              2013
direcl``rs                                         other related              2012

part`e6

Sil]ophil                              Associale                            Advances from               2013
associcte                      2012

Paclfic oDJine                  Assouiote                           Advmceg from               2013
assceiole                      2012

Assoaale6                        Advances from              201.`
otbei related             2012

put,es
with cormon
stcetholders

C8sh equvalents            Z013
2012

Interest income oo        20L.
cash equvalents     2012
(seeNcteg 8              2ol l
and 28)

P15        fl.`754568         Nor-inteTcsl  beanng,           Unse.`ured+  part.ally
I 5           3.754j54           d\Le and demandeble       provided arrountii.g.o

P79,452 in 2013  and
20'2

-                 29.98         Noii-interest bearing.                             Unsccured.
-                 29,398          due and demandrble                         no al lov'anee

-                    lJ)36         Nor-interest bemng,           UnsecuTed, panially

( I 9,06S)               43,834           due and deimtidrblc      provided amounting to
Tiil  iri  2013   al`d

Nell-in(Crest  beapTig,

due and dcmandable

P14,515  in 2012

Not applicable
Notapplicable

uquidated

Liquidated

34j}¢         Nell,iTilece8t  be      ng,                               Uiiseoured.
-                  54.334           due  and demairdable        fuJly I.ro`'idedm 2013

a'ld 20 I 2

-                    I I ,486         Now-mtcrcst b.anng,            Uusccured.  pardally

(2,845)                  15,I  lR           due  anddrmalrdable       provided arrro`iiiting (o
P 11,447  in :013  and

11.592  in 2012

(36.,696)                  2,087         Nun-m`erest beaning,           U"iceured, patially
5,566               365.782          cue altd demalrdablc      provided amoiiLmig lo

P624 in 20 I 3  and
1] ,087 in 2013

(91.S68)                  2J72         Noa.inleresl  bechng.                              Uiisecured.
4.134                    93,940            due  uiid dBmiund.ible                  purtluLly provided

amo,ul',,Ig 'o
ul  iii 2013  and Pl,737

in 20 I 2 .

17Jll                  15,85.1            Now-inlcrest bearing,             UrEsccLLr®d.  parLlally
17,L26               31,945             due anddemundrble       provided runo`mling.o

16,3 74 in 2013 and
2012

(72,608)                  2,259         NolriA`ere8t beanng

(553)
(I,,cO2)

( 10,010)

74,867          due and demandable

60,753         Nol]-Lale[est beanng,
60,753          due and demandable

-        Nor-inlere6tbeanng,
29,034          due and demandeble

I o,819          Noti-InJeTest beunng`
I 0,8 I 9           due  aJld demandal)Ie

-        Nod-inerestbeamg,
3,426          due and demandeble

-        Noa-Interest bemlig,
-          due and demaDdable

3,707        Nor,interesl beamg,

(I,I  I  I,120)             1210,)87

10.509
8 I .904
22.875

[uterest beuing

3  I 4°/a to 4.56%
3  87% to 4.56®/.
I  Oee7O  to  3.94%

Unsecued

Uus€cued

Unsecued

Uuseciired

Uiisecured

Uusec`ired

UusEcued

Unee.uled
no' impaled

Umecuedt
trot mpatnd
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Traus8clion       O``tsianding
Amounts               Balance Terms                                  Cbndilion

lnlere6l beari ng                                 Unseciircd2013                PZ4Z,429

2012                   (339.454)

P-
242.429

Tnteresl I)earl ng                                 Urueoured,
not  impain=d

o 62%-o,75u/u                        Unsend
Trot  impaiTcd

hteresl beaT"g                                  Secured

4.25%  lo  512''/u                                       Secured
4 50''/a to 7 00%
7 00''/o  lo  7 50''/1'

}.75°/a-6.58%
4.25%-6.989/.,

Rclaled partv                     Relationshii)                        Transaction

Rcceivables

purchase
agreemou
(see Note  9)

E screw fu nd
(see Nob;  34)

ha~ income on
cscrow fund
(See Notes 27
nd 33)

Short~ loans
(see Note  19)

InteTcst cxponse On
shortwh
loans gross Of
capirdized
interest

giv Note919
ut 28)

L- deb'
(see Note 22)

In~ expense on
Long- debt
(see Mutes  I 5
nd 28)

Wilh common
stockhoiders

SM Aremcotrylex      W`lh common
CoTT>omliol]                stockbolders

Bell.shales
Holdings,  Lee

I0j35
6.063

12£00

20.073
I  L,594

l]TM  iaveslmcats         2013
(se Note  l3)            2012                   750`cOO

Interest Income oD         Z013                     38.7ZS
HTM
LOvestnents \see
Notes  13  and
28)

Stockholders                     Receiv8bles

Directors and omcers   J`ey lnungemelu           Receivobles

personnel                                      (See Note  9)

Short-term
eml,loyee
benefits

F'osl<mployneoT
benefits

750,000
750,000

5  ysas,  Tenewabtc                         N.ot aT)plicablc

I  year, Tonc`vabt€                         Not app`icablc

5  year:                         Not a|iplicable

Lntorosl beunng.
irmuting Ln

7  and  10  )€afB

Not appheflble

6.oo%-6.04o/a                        r`'o` apphcablc

Unsecured,
mlerest-free

(10.84S)                   I,138                            Interest-hoe            Unseciued, Imerest-
(2`3 3 7)                     11.983

37'221
31,422

3,964
3,964

ha. paAially provided
amounting to P688

Nc)I  applicable                         Nco a|>pncable

Noi  applicQble                        Not applic8ble

Allowance provided on advances to associates amounted to P145.2 million and Pl 59.9 million as
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note  12).

Allowance for doubtful accounts of advances to related parties amounted to P8.7 million and
P9.2 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.   Provision for doubtful accounts on
advances to related parties amounted to nil,  P2. I  million and nil in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively (see Note 29).
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Transactions witt` other related parties are as follows:

I      On May  l2, 2012, the company entered into an operating lease agreement with sM Land. Inc.

covering its new office space (see Note 31).

I      The company entered into a sponsorship agreement with sM Arena complex corporation

(SMACC) for 5 years commencing on May 21, 2012.  The Company is charged for a
sponsorship fee of p95.0 million payable in 5 equal installments of pl9.0 million amuelly.   In
return, SMACC shall grant the Company marketing and promotional entitlements in the MOA
Arena during the sponsorship period.

I      The parent company entered into a service agreement with pLAl in 2012, wherein pLAl shall

provide technical advisory support services relating to the operation, direction. management
and supervision of the integrated resort project.   Project management fee charged by PLAI to
the Parent Company amounted to P8.0 million and P25.0 million in 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and was eliminated in the consolidated statements of colxpreheusive income.

•      The parent company entered into a service agreement with sM Land, Inc. in 2013, wherein
SM I.and shall perform specific services relative to the operations and personnel of the Parent
Company's land and buildings.   Service fee charged by SM I.and to the Parent Company
amounted to P 12.5  million in 2013.

34.  Significant Contracts

Investment Commitment with PACX=OR
ln October 2012, the Company, tcigether with PLAl (Phil. Parties) and MCE Leisure Philippines
and its two other related companies (MCE Parties) have been granted the license to operate an
integrated entertainment complex in Aseana Boulevard. Paranaque City which will now be known
as "City Of Dreams Manila".   Uhder the Provisional License granted to the group, the parties are
committed to invest a minimum of US S I  billion ("Investment Commitment") into the Project.
Under the PAGCOR Guidelines, of the USS I.0 billion, Usse50.0 million shall be invested upon
the opening of the casino and the other US$350.0 million shall be invested within a periotl Of three
(3) years from the commencement of the casino operations.  The Investment Commitment shall be
composed of the value of the land and the development costs of the infrastructures and facilities
within the Project.

The other salient provisions of the License are: (I) creation of an escrow account where the funds
to be used exclusively for the PrQject are expected to flow through but with a maintaining balance
Of US$50.0 million and is separately shown as the "Escrow Fund" account in the 2012
consolidated statement of finaneial position; (ii) issuance Of performance bond of Ussloo.0
million to guarantee the completion of the project; and (iii) issuance Of surety bond Of US$100.0
million to guarantee the payment to PAGCOR Of all fees payable under the License granted by
PAGCOR.

As at December 31, 2012, the Escrow Fund ves being maintained with a balance of
US$50.3 million.   Interest income earned on the Escrow Fund amounted to P 12. I  million in 2012
(see Note 27).   In May 2013, the Escrow was terminated as MCE Leisure O'hilippines)
Corporation C`MCE Leisure') deposited its own Escrow Fund to replace that of the Company.
Thus, the balance of the Company's Escrow Fund amounted to nil as Of December 31, 2013.
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AB Leisure Global Tne. rABLGII AQreements
On January  14, 2011, the Parent Company and PLAI entered into several agreements ("ABLGT
Agreements") with ABLGI and Leisure and Resorts World Corporation URWC) for the leasing,
fit out and operation of the Project to be located at Aseana Business Park, Paranaqure City.

On March 13, 2013, Belle, PLAI, ABLGI and LRWC entered into an Agreement effectively
terminating its ABLGI Agreements.   In consjdcration for the waiver of ABLGI's rights under the
ABGLI Agreements, Belle and PLAI have agreed to pay settlement amounts rABLGI
Payments"), of p283.5 million as of December 31, 2013.

Cooneration A greement with M elco
On October 25, 2012, the Company together with PLAI rphilippine Parties), formally entered
into a Cooperation Agreement with Melco, a conipany listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
which governs their cooperation in the development and operation of an integrated resort complex.
The Cooperation Agreement places the Company as a co-licensee and the owner of the site's land
and buildings, while Melco will be a co-licensee and operator of all the facilities within the resort
conxplex.

In March 2013, Melco paid the Company the amount of p949.6 million which represents various
costs Melco agreed to absorb as one of the conditions of the Philippine Parties in including the
MCE Parties as co-licensees under the Project.  This amount was recorded as termination income
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2013.

ODerating Aaneement with MeLco
On March  13, 2013, the Company, together with PLAl, entered into an Operating Agreement with
MCE Holdings No. 2 (Philippines) Corporation (`MCE 2 IIoldings), MCE Holdings
¢hilippines) Corporation and MCE Leisure.    Under the terms Of the Operating Agreement, MCE
Leisure was appointed as the sole and exclusive operator and manager of the casino development
Prqject.   The Operating Agreement shall bc in full force and effect for the period of the PAGCOR
License, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the agreements among the parties.

Share Swap Agreement
In  1997,  Sinophil together with the Parent Company (then a 32% shareholder) entered into a Swap
Agreement with Paxell Limited and Metroplex Berhad (both Malaysian companies, collectively
refined to as "Metraplex) whereby Sinophil issued 3,870,000,000 Of its common shares in
exchange for 46,381,600 shares Of LIR-HK, a Hong Kong-based company, which is a subsidiary
ofMetroplex.

On August 23, 2001, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was entered into by and among the
Parent Company, Sinophil, Metroplex and LIR-HK rescinding the Swap Agreement and
ccancelling all chligations stated therein and reversing all the transactions as well as returning all
the objects thereof in the following manner:

a.    Metroplex shall surrender the certificates of sinophil shares held by them in relation to the
Swap Agreement.   Belle shall then cause the reduction of the capital stock of Sinophil to the
extent constituting the Sinophil shares of stock sunendered by Metroplex and the cancellation and
delisting Of such shares from the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

b.    Sinophil shall surrender the LIR-HK shares back to Metroplex.

The investments in LIR-HK of Sinophil were recorded under "Available-for-sale financial assets"
and are fully inapaired as at December 31,  2011  (see Note  14).
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As at March 8, 2014, LIR-HK still has  I,000,000,000 undelivered Sinophil shares after the said
shares have been foreclosed and successfully auctioned by the creditor of Metroplex.

35.  Contingencies

ln the normal course of business, there are certain tax cases and legal cases related to labor
disputes and land ownership issues filed against the Company.  Management and its legal counsel
believe that the Company has substantial legal and factual bases for its position and are of the
opinion that tosses arising from the aforementioned cases, if any. will not have a material impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

36.  Basicmiluted EPS

2013
2012

As restated
2011

As restated)

Earnings attributable to Equity
holders of the Parent

qn Thousands, Except N.Imber Of
Shares and EPS)

853                      P555.720                      P20l,982
Weighted average number of issued

common shares - basic` at
beginning of year

Issued during the year
see Notes  17 and 23

10£Sl,086,586             8,533,117,798             6,178,426,290

-              1,817,968,788              2,354,691,508

Weighted average flumber of issued
common shares - basic. at end of

586            10,351,086,586              8,533,117,798

Basic/diluted EPS pO.352                           ro.054                           pO.024

There are no common stock equivalents that would have a dilutive effect on the basic EPS.

37.  Financial Assets and Finanelal Liabilities

Financial Risk Mananemeut Ob iectives andd Policies
The Company's principal financial assets and financial liabilities are corrposed Of cash aml cash
equivalents, shortlerm investments, HrM investments, AFS financial assets, escrou/ fund, Loans

payables, long-term debt and assignment of receivables with recourse.   The main purpose of these
financial assets and financial liabilities is to raise finances for the Company's operations.   The
Company has various other financial assets and financial Liabilities such as receival]les, advances
to associates and other related parties and accounts payal)le and other liabilities, which arise
directly from its real estate operations.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are interest
rate rislq foreign currency rislc, credit risk and liquidity risk.  The Company's BOD and
rmnagcmcnt rcvicw and agree on the policies for managing each Of these risks and these are
sununarized below.
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/«/eras/ Ra/e Ri.sA.   Interest rate risk arises  from the possibility that changes in  interest rates will
affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial assets and financial  liabilities.   The
Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt which
is subject to cash flow interest rate risk.   Re-pricing of FRNs is done every six months while re-

pricing of long-term debt is normally done every three months.

The Company's policy is to manage its interest cost by limiting its borrowings.   The Company's
loans payable and long-term debt are subject to interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Company's consolidated income before income tax in
2013 and 2012.   There is no other impact on the Company's equity other than those already
affecting the profit or loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

2013                                                                   2012

Increase                D ecrcase                   lncTeasc                 Decrease
in Basis points     in Basis points      in Basis points      in Basis points

(In Thousands, Excepl Change ln Basis Points)

Change in basis points*                                                 +22                            -22                           +44                            44
Effect cin income before Income tax                 alz,093 )                    P2,093                  (P4,076)                     P4,076

*Average movenlerll in LIBOR inleresl rales `f or I he par( i ive years.

Forei.gr Cwrre#qJ Rz`s4.  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
financial asset or financial liability will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.   As at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company's foreigli currency-denominated FRNs amounted to
P977.2 million and P903.6 million (US$22.0 million), respectively.   As at December 31, 2012, the
Company's foreign-denominated escrow fund amounted to P2.064.5 (US$50.3 million).

Foreign currency-denominated financial asset and financial liability in US dollars, translated into
Philippine peso at the closing rate are as follows:

2013                               2012

Escrow fund
FRNs

(1n Thoiisalids)

*                   $50.291
22,012

Foreign culTency-denolnlnated financ ial
liabilities $28,279

In translating the foreign currency-denominated escrow fund and long-term debt into peso
amounts, the exchange rate used was P44.40 to USS I.0 and P41.05 to Ussl .0, the Philippine peso
to US dollar exchange rates as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

It is the Company's policy to ensure that capabilities exist for active but conservative rmnagement
Of its foreign currenc`y risk.  The Company seeks to mitigate its transactional culTency exposure by
maintaining its costs at consistently low levels, regardless of any upward or downward movement
in the foreign currency exchange rate.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the U.S. dollar
exchange rates, with al] other variables held constant, of the Company's consolidated income
before tax as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.   There is no other impact on the Company's equity
other than those already affecting the profit or loss in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

2013                                                                      2012

Increase                Decrease                  Increase                Decrease
in uss Rate         in uss Rate          in uss Rflte          in uss Rate

(ln ThorLisands, Except Change in USS Rate)

Change in uss rate*                                                   P3.13                     ¢3.13)                      PO.23
Effect on income before income tax                   (68,787)                    68,787                        6.504

`Average movement of U.S. dollar agalnsl Philippine peso for the pastJive years.

(PO.23)

(6,504)

The increase in USS rate means stronger US dollar against peso while the decrease in USS means
stronger peso against the US dollar.

Credl./ Jtz'sA.   Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a Loss because its customers or
counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations.   It is the Company's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.   In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant.  The Company does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the management.  There is no significant concentration of credit
risk.

In the Company's real estate business, title to the property is transferred only upon full payment of
the purchase price.   There are also provisions in the sales contract which allow forfeiture of
installments/deposits made by the customer in favor of the Company and retain ownership of the
property.   The Company has the right to sell, assign or transfer to third party and any interest
under sales contract, including its related receivables from the customers.   The C`ompany's
prirmry target customers are high-income individuals and top corporations, in the Philippines and
overseas.  These measures minimize the credit risk exposure or any margin loss from possible
default in the payments of installments.

Trade receivables from sale of real estate units are secured with pre-completed property units.
The legal title and ownership of these units wilt only be transferred to the customers upon full

payment of the contract price.   Receivables from sale of club shares are secured by the shares held
by the Company.   For other receivables, since the Company trades only with recognized third
parties. there is no requirement for collateral.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Company, which comprise of
cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivabLes, advances to associates and other
related parties, escrow fund and AFS financial assets, the Company's exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying value of these
fi nancial assets.
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The table below shows the Company's aging analysis of financial  assets.

2013

3l  to60                      6l  lo                       ovel.
Thro                 90 Da]ng                  901)airs

ITn Thoulaiuls)

L,-L
3/)10                       13`292                    113j04

Due ilor              (cese than
lmDair€d                30 tfavI

I J)Z0396                          P-

7 I o.838                      3,897
230giv

9,75Z2 I Z

176.723
„JS87

750un
1,113`193

Cach  and c@sli equivalcnls.
Receivables'

Trade..
Others

Finance  lease  receivable
Advances lo associat€s ...- net of

subscrii]lion payable
Adve"ceg to rela!€d parties
HTM iliveshents
AFS  financlal  assets
Escrow find

lmDalred                      TI)taut

I-        P1020j96

S.773

'2},576

145233
-                    8,656

:           I,sg8rfm

8S6J'14
353FT2

9,7S2212

32lp56
20243

750,coo
3J72409

•Exk/uding cwh on had
• .Excluding norl-fimmcl(il trcide r.cerral)Ies urn()unling lrl P I 29.5  milllrln

•..I.resenled urlder  "Investmems in  and udvonces lri cls!Roclules"  accrlunl ni lhe col).solldaled slalements oJ f imamral I.aslllorl

2012

t`leitheT Post                                             Past  D`Ie but not lmTiaired

D`ie nor               Leas than                 3l  to  6lt                         6l  to

Cast. and cash cquvaJents.
Short.telTn invc`ct"mts
Rcc€ivables:

Trade,|
Others

Advances lo a<sceintes ...- net of
subecripiion iiaysbl.

Advances lo rt;lot cd par(ics
RTM il]vewhcnl*
AFS  rlnancial assets
F,serow fund

Pl.4'9,S61                                 P-
965

9 I 3,756                         2r32o

199,883

62,345
482,469
750.000
28,6'9

(ln TIIousands)

I-                     PL                     P-

l ,97R                           I,736                     103,M9

L           Pl,419,56l
-q65

5,77}                 I,02?,412

31,352                      231.235

-                   159,893
-                      9,196

-                     20,555

222,238

491,665
750.000

49. I 74

+~acht.,.             P5fqu         I+2'         lM         11,736       P|o|+44
•.Erehidlng rlrrrl-f imaricidl  lrade receivallles alnoilnllng ln 1' 129  5  milllnn

•..Pro:.enled under  "Jnveslmenl:s  [n and ad` arlceT lr) a..sociales "  acer)unl  in lhe crlmr)Iidaled Rlalenencs  rl.r/inarl¢idl prl.silion

Financial assets are considered past due when collections are not received on due date.

Past due accounts which pertain to trade receivables from sale of real estate units and club shares
are recoverable since the legal title and ownership of the real estate units and club shares will only
be transferred to the customers upon full payment of the contract price.

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company's financial assets that are neither past
due nor impaired based on historical experience with the colTesponding third parties.

2013
h Grade  Mediuln Grade               Unrated                    Total

Cash and cash equivalents*
Receivables:

Trade.®
Others

Finance lease receivable
Advances lo associates*** -net

of subscription payable
Advances to related parties

(Forward)

(Ill The.Isonds.)

I I '020396                        P-

716'838
230,296

9,752,212

176,723
11,587

L          Pl ,020,396

716'838
-                 230,296

9,752,Z12

176,723
11,587

mimiiimmimiimiiimliiiiiiiii"iii"illi
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2013
h Grade   Medium Grade                 Unrated                      Total

HTM investments
AFS financial assets

«n Thousarids)

P750'000                           fL                           PL
65'158

P750,000

P14,366,687 rL                 p65,i58          pi4,431,845
•Exchlding c:{Ish on hanal.

•.Excltiuling nan-financial  Iracle recei`Iables amounting lo P 129.5  milnon.
•.`Presenled under  '.lnveslmenls in and advances lu assuciares " accJ)unl in lhe consuli.Ia(eil sralen.enrs Of f iinanctal posmun.

2012

Grade     Medium Grade                  UIfated                       Total

Cash and cash equivalents*
Shor(-term investments
Receivables:

Trade**
Others

Adva`nces to associates**+  -net
of subscription payable

Advances to related parties
HTM investments
AFS fJnancial assets
Escrow fund

Pl.419,561

965

913.756
199,883

62,345
482,469
750.000
25.861

2,064,450

(In Thousands)

I_                              pL             Fl ,419,561
965

913,756
199,883

62,345
482,469
750.000

2,758                        28,619
-              2,064,450

F5,919,290                               FL                      P2,758             P5,922,048
•Eac hidung cash on harwl.

•.Exclllding lloiI-f inaI1.Ial irtlde recei\ial.Ies amouii   lig 11. P 129.5 millilin.
+..Pre:senled .Inder .'Inve:slments in and advances !o a`ssoclales " account in lhe comolidaled stalemenls Of f inancial position.

High grade financial assets pertain to receivables from clients or customers who have no history of
delayed payment while medium grade includes receivables from clients or customers who have
history of delayed payment but is currently updated.

Cash in banks, cask equivalents, short-term investments and escrow fund are deposited with the
top ten banks in the Philippines; hence, considered high grade.

Unquoted AFS firmncial assets are unrated while quoted HTM investments and AFS financial
assets are assessed as high grade based on financial statlls of the counterparty and its current stock
price performance in the market.

£i.gw;dtry Rj.sA.   Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with rinancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset.   The Company seeks to manage its liquidity profile to bc able to finance its capital
expenditures and service its maturing debts.   The Company's objective is to maintain a balance
bctween continuity of funding and flexibility through valuation of projected and actual cash flow
information.   The Company considers obtaining boITowings as the need arises.

lmlm"Illmmll"lllllllmllllllllllilllll
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The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and
financial  liabilities as at December 31,  2013 and 2012 based on contractual  undiscounted cash
flows.   The table also analyzes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets in order to

provide a complete view of the Company's contractual commitments and liquidity.

Z013

6 Months
On Demand     <6 Monlli8         to I Year        I-3Years         >3 Years                 Total

Flnancfal Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables*
Finance  lease receivable
Advances to associates'' '' -net

F!l` 170£96                         FL
274,840                98,048

-             504,20S

Of subscription paysble                 176.723
Advances to related parties                      11,587
HTM investments                                   750,000
AFs fLnancial assets                            I,773 793

(I n Thousands )

FL                    i-                    FL     Pl,170j96
122,S66              3 I Z,220              137P35              945,609
504.20S         2,233£05       34j60,Sol      37.602,416

-             176,723
-                11,587
-            750,000
-        I,773

39          P602 253         If26 771       P2 545.725    P34 436    P42

Financial hiabilities
Loans payable* . *
Accounts  payable and other

liabililies*..*
Long-termdetit***
Nontrade liability
Assignment Of receivables

with recourse* * .

P-         P20l'310

2,429,441

F85                 I-                 r       p2oi pg5

-         2,429,441
I,018,760                44,984             220£06             305,607          I,589,657

-         4,000,000         4,000,000

93372292 189                          -                10
p2.42944i      pi,22im3           p52.z98         p222495      p4,305.607      F823O$44

-ELcluding nr>l.-f inancial lrade recei`nghles amounting to  I I 29  5  mtllir)n
•.Pre!senled under ..Inveslrnenks  in and ad`iances lo a.s.]ociales '.  accr)unl in  lhe comolichted .stalemenHs  Of f inancial pasilion.

•+*Inchld;ng f illure in[erest puylnenls.
-..- Exclndiiig custoiners . depr>.sit:s, .stofulory payah[e.] and olher liahilitles  lo llle goverilrneili`

2012

6 Months
On Demand      < 6 Moflths          to  I  Year         I-3 Years          > 3  Years                  Total

Qn Thousands)

Financial Assets
Cash and each equivalents
Short-temi investments
Receivables*
Advances to associates® *  - net

of subscription payable
Advances to related paties
HTM investments
AFS financial assets
Escrow fund

Pl,419,7l I                     i
965

I 17.353                 144,091

62,345
482,469
750,000
28,619

P-

160,397

I-                      P-      Pl,4L9.7ll
965

534, 886              227,626           I ,184J53

-              62,345
-            482,469
-            750,000
-                28.619
-        2,064,450

912            P144 091             P160 397           P5 34 886           P227,626       P5,992,912

Finonclal Llabnities
Loans payable* . *
Accou[it§ payable and other

liabilities....
-term det't* * *

a-      p2,ii4,65o              pi,i83                  p339                      r      p2.ii6,i72

I.837,427                                                                                                                           -           I.837,427
-                63,874              313,473          2,loo,087          2,88865 8           5,366,092

Pl.837.427       P2 524           P314 656       P2 loo.426      P2 888,658
• Excluding nan-f iTiancial  trade receivab[es amounling lo F I 29.5  millicin.

•*Preseiiled under "1nvpslmenls  ln and ad`Ianres  lo associaleJs " accounl in  lhe consolidaled slalemerits Of f inancial I)osllion.
•..lrlcluding f uture .Iri[eresl pr)/meals.

**.*E.xchiding c.Islomers ` deposils. slalillory poyal)leg and olher liabililies  lo the governmenl.

iminiiimliimuniiiiimi"iiiliimiii"mi



-79-

The Company expects to settle its maturing obligations on long-term debt from its gaming
revenues from casino operations which is expected to open in 2014, rental income on land and
ccasino building (see Note 34) and expected profits from real estate development pperatious.

CaDital Mananement
TThe primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard its ability to continue
as a gong concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and lo maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

TThe Company marmges its capital structure and makes aQiustments to it, in light of changes in
eeconomic conditions.   To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.  There were
nno changes made in the objectives, policies or processes in 2013 and 2012.

The Company considers the following as its capital:

2012
2013 As restated

Preferred stock
Cormon stock
Additional paid-in capital
Equity share in cost of parent Company shares held

by a§ sociates
Cost of parent Company preferred and common

shares held by subsidiaries
Retained earrin

qn Thousands)

I I ,000'000             P I ,000,000
10,559,383                 10,559,383
5,503,731                   5,503,731

(2,SOL)                     (731,696)

(2,257,631)                   (562,375)
666                        893`813

Pl9,336,648            P16,662,856

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio.  This ratio is calculated as
total interest-b Caring debt over equity.

The Company's strategy, which remains unchanged from prior period, is to maintain the debt-to-
equity ratio at manageable levels.   For purposes of monitoring debt-to-equity ratio, the Company
excludes trade and other payables arising from operations.   Only interest-bearmg debt is included
in the total debt.

The debt-to-equity ratio is as follows:

2013                               2012
(1n Tlrousarlds, excapt i or debt-to-eqiNty ralro)

Interest-bearing debt (a)                                                                   P5,792,815              P6,800,879
084                 16,623,395

0.29:I                            0.41:I

ililmmlimi"ii"iii"i"iiiliiiimimim
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Fair Value of Financial  Assets and Financial Liabilities
Sset out below is a comparison by category and by class of carrying values and fair values of all the
Company's  financial  assets and fimaneial  liabilities:

2013

Carry],)g
Value                   Total

Quoted
(Unadjusted)

Prices in       Sigiiificant          Significant
Active     Observable    Unobservable

Markets               Inputs                 lnptits

Assets
Assets measured at fur value

AFS financial  assets 455        P| 455          P|

qn Thousands)

455                I-                  I-
Assets for which fall value is

disclosed:
Loans alid receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Trade
Others

Finance lease receivable
Advances to associales'* -net

of subscription paysble
Advances to related pallies
AFS finciaJ assets (unquoted)
HTM investments

1,170246            I,170,246                                                            -            I.170,246

851,041                858,213
230,296                Z30,296

9,752£ 12            9,75Z212

176,7Z3                 176,723
11,587                      11,587

154J38                154,338
000               787 078

858.213
-              230£96
-            9,752,212

-                176,723
-                11587
-             154j38

078
443          13 693                           -        I Z91            11

P14.715.898       1114.760`148            Pl.619.45S       Pl`645.29l       Ill.495.402

Liabilities
Liabilitie§  for which fair val`ie  is

disclosed:
has payable
Accounts paysble and other

Liabilities*-*

Nontrnde liability
Long-term debt
Assigtunent of receivables

with TecoLuse

P20 l£95            P201,39S

Z,429,441             2,429,441
4.000,000            4,000'000
I,502$00            I,417,169

549                  83

PL                   I-          P20|,95

Z,429,44l
-           4,000,000
-            1'417,169

469                                                       -                83
P8.223`185         P8.13l`474• EXctry.anfu-al tnt rran~-E=® pE29\:\±#=             I-            +    quLTon.

•.Presented i.nder "Invesllnents in (Ind ud`lances lo assoriales " account ln lhc ..onsolidalcd slalernents Of i inoncial I)osllion
".Exclud.iig a.islomers ' depos Its. s totulory payal}les and olller liabllllles lo tlle go\.errlmeiil.

2012

Carrylng
Value                     Total

Quoted
(unndjusted)

Prices in       SigDific"t           Significant
Active       Observable      Unobservable

MaTkels                  Inputs                     Inputs
Level 3)

(1n Thousands)
Assets
Asse(s measured at fall value

AFS finan.`ia] assets uotcdl                    P22,14l                P22` 14l                  P22,14l                        +                          a-

(Forward)

imlmmiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiimiiiiiilmiiimiii
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2012

Quoted
arnadjusted)

Pr]ces in Signi ficant            Signi ficant

Carrying
Val`ie                      Total

Active       Observable     Unobservable
Markets                  Inputs                     Inputs

(Level  I
Assets for which fair vahie is

disclosed:
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term i nvestments
Recejvables:

Trade
Others

Advances lo assuciates*. -net
of subscription payable

Advances to related parties
AFS financial assets (uiiquoted)
HTM i nvestments
Escrow fund

P1,419,711

965

I,023,639
199,883

62,345
482.469

6.478
750.000

2,064,450

P',419.7l  I                                  P-

965

I,038,925
199.883

62,345
482,469

6.478
719,286

2.064,450

I-          Pl,419.7l I
965

I.038,925
-                 199,883

-                 62,345
-               482,469
-                   6,478

719,286
-            2.064,450

6,009,940            5 ,994,512 -          I,758211            4.236jol
P6,032,08 I          P6,016,653 P22.14l       Pl,758.2lI          P4,236,30 I

1,iabiLities
Liabilities for which fair value is

disclosed:
Lung payable
Accounts payable and other

ljabi'ities***
-term debt

P2,08l ,714          P2.081.714                               PL                         a-          P2,08l,714

1,837.427              I,837,427                                                                    -              I,837,427
1654 849                                                     -           4
306          P8 990                        P-                    P-          8

+Excluding nor.-i ilnaneial  trade I.eceivahle.s amoui.   iig lo P I 2 9.5 million.
•.Pre:Ienled tlnder .' Invesrrrienks in and advances to associales " account ln the comoli{]aled .slalemerlks Of f ilnanonal posll.on.

•..E!xchiding c.I.stomers ' depe``ils, .`totulory pa).ahles awl olher liahililie.x lo the govemmenl.

The Company has no financial hiabilities measured at fair value as al December 31, 2013 and
2012.  There were no transfers between fair value measurements in 2013 and 2012.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial assets and financial Liabilities:

Cash arid Cash Equivalenls, Shorl-Ierrrl Investments, Advances lo Assoc.Iales and other Relaled
Parties, Dividend and Olher Receivables, Escrow Fund, Loans Payal)le, Accounls Payable and
Other Liabilities and Nontrade Liability.  The carryingvi\hoes of these Ejman!ctzA a,sscts
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturities of these financial assets
and financ ial liabilities.

Trade Jiece;.vab/es.   Tbe fair value of these financial assets is determined by discounting the
estimated cash flows using prevailing interest rates as at reporting dates.   The discount rates used
ranged from  I.0% to 4.8% in 2012 in 2013, 2.0% to 5. I % in 2012 and 3.9% to 8.5% in 2011.

Fi.#a#ce i ease Jiece!.unb/es.   The fair value of firmnce lease receivable is determined by
discounting the estimated cash flows using prevailing interest rate of 15.8% in 2013.

miiiiimmmmmiiliilm"iiiniimimiii
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fJ7.W/#ves/7"e#/I c7"c/AFS FjHc7#ci.a/ Asse/s.   The fair values of HTM investments in quoted debt
securities and AFS financial assets in quoted equity shares ai.e based on quoted prices in the PSE
or those shares whose prices are readily available from brokers or other regulatory agency as at
reporting date.   There are no quoted market prices for the unlisted shares and there are no other
reliable sources of their fair values, therefore, these are carried at cost, net of any impairment loss.

£o#g-/er7„ Ded/.  The fair value of US FRNs and long-term loans payable is determined by
discounting the obligations' expected future cash flows using the discount rate of 2.4% and 10.8%
to  11.1%, respectively,  in 2013,  2.5% and 8.8% to  10.4%` respectively,  in 2012 and 2.2% and
9.3% to  10.4%, respectively,  in 2011.

4ssi.gri»e#/ a/Jiecei.vab/es t4i7.//i Jtecowrse.   The fair value of these instruments is determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using the discount rates ranging from 3.5% to 5.0% in
2013.

38.  Classirication of Statement of Financial Position Accounts

The current portions of assets and liabilities that are expected to be recovered or settled within no
more than 12 months after the reporting date are as follows:

December 31,    December 31,            January  I,
2013                         2012                         2012

CulTent assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term Investments
Receivables
Current portion of finance lease

receivable
Real estate for sale
Cl`ib shares
Advances to associates* -net of

subscription payable
Advances to related pardes
Other assets

P1,170,396          Pl ,419,7 I I           P2,766,880
965                      9,668

I,081,337              I,223,522                  602,163

(341,108)
654,967

2'810,221

176,723
l|'S87

499,997                 665,639
2,812,642              2,786,148

62,345                  13 I ,507
482,469                 457.764
741,278                  553,408

591           P7,243,019          P7,973,177

Cunent liabilities :
Loans payable
Cull.ant portion of long term-debt
Accounts payable and other
liabilities
Assignment of accounts receivable

with recourse
Income tax

P200,466          P2,081,278          P2,152,162
1'034,210

2,469,852

89,549

1,831,294               I,750,935

416                       8,258

077           P3,912,988           P3,9 I I ,355
* Presenled undei. "1nveslmeii(s in aiid advances lo associales " accoilnl in the consolidated sla[ements

Of i ilnancial posit.ion.

In 2013, the Company changed the classification of the noncurrent portion of `.Real estate for
sale" amounting to P2.4 tiillion as at December 31, 2012 and Jan`iary  I, 2012.   As a result. the
balances of both periods have been restated to enhance intra-period comparability.   The
reclassification did not affect the Company's com|)liance with loan covenants in current and
previous years.

Illlmlllllllll"mulllllllmlllllll"Illllllll



39.  Supplemental Disclosure of cash Flow Information

ln 2013, the principal noncash transactions pertain to the Parent Company's share swap agreement
with SM Land, Inc. which resulted to a gain amounting to P772.2 million (see Note  12) and
accounting for its finance lease receivable which resulted to a Day  I  gain on finance lease
amounting to P2,324.4 miJJion and jntcrest income on f[nance lease amounting to Pl,177.6 Jnillion
(see Note 3 I ).

In 2012, the principal noncash transactjous pertain to the Parent Company's gain on liquidating
dividends  from Belle Bay City amounting to P539.7 million (see Notes  12  and  15) and transfer
of cerlain items of property and equipment to other assets amounting to P I I .6 million
(see Notes  16 and  18).

In 201 I, the principal noncash transactions pertain to the Parent Company's share swap agreement
for the acquisition of PLAl amounting to P5,261.2 million (see Notes  18 and 33) and the transfer
of real estate for sale to investment property amounting to P Ill.3 million (see Notes  10 and 15).
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6760 Ayala Avenue                         Fax,  (632)  819  0872
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INDEPENI)ENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCIIEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Belle Corporation
5th Floor, Tower A
Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue
Mall of Asia Complex, CBP-lA, Pasay City

Decen`ber 28,  2012.  valid  \jntil  December 31.  2015
SEC  Accreditalion  No. 001?-FR-3  (Group A),

November  15,  2012   valid  iintil  Novembe.16,  2015

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Belle Corporation and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for each or
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued
our report thereon dated March 8, 2014.  Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  The schedules listed in the Index to the
Consolidated Financ ial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the
Company's management.  These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011) and are not part of the basic financial statements.
These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respeets, the information required
to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

*Hnglng?dy-
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 86898
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-I  (Group A),

February 2, 2012, valid until February  1, 2015
Tax Identification No.  129-434-867
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-67-2012,

April  11, 2012, valid until April  10, 2015
PTR No. 4225188, Januny 2, 2014, Makati City

March 8, 2014
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Belle Corporation and Subsidiaries

Index to Supplementary Schedules
Form 17-A, Item 7

As at December 31, 2013

Supplementary Schedules

A.  Financial Assets

a. Amounts of receivables from Directors, Officers,  Employees and  Principal Stockholders

(other than I.elated parties)

C. Amounts of Recelvables from  Related  Parties which  are Eliminated  during the  Consolidation of Financial

Statements.

D.  Intangible Assets -Other Assets

E.  Long-term  Debt

F. Indebtedness to Related  Parties

G. Guarantees of Securities of Other lssuers

H. Capital Stock

I.  Reconciliation  of Retained  Earnings   Available for DMdend  Declaration

J.  I(ey Financial  Ratios



Belle Corporation and Subsidiaries

Scliedule A -Financial Assets

As at December 31, 2013
(Amounts ln Thousands}

Loans and Recelvables
Cash ln  banks arid cash equlvalerits

Trade iecelvables

other receivatles
Advances to as5ociate5

1,170,396

986,264

3S3,872

3,706,490

|1,S87
6, 2 28,609                                                           13,loo

AFS Investments
Eq uity lnvesments
Equity Investments

Eq uity Investments

Equity lnve5m ents

Eq ulty Investments

Equity Investments

Equity Investments

Equ ity Investments

SM Prlme  Holdings

Tagaytay Midlands lnt'l  Golf C'ub

Legend  International  Resorts  .  HK

SM  Investments Corporation

Highland  Gourmet

The Count/y Club al T@gaylay  Highlands

Costs  Del  Hamilo

PIDT

Others

i,600.921

88.800

58,319

18,521

2,COO

1,880

7S7

13

2,582

1,773,793

H" Invean€nts
Debt investments SM Investment Corporation 750,000

Total I:lnanclal Assets                                                                                                                                                                                                       8, 75 2,402                                                           31,006







Belle Corporation and Subsidlarles
Schedule D. Iiitanglble Assets

As at December 31, 2013
'inourlts I,nThu5ands)

Beginning            Additions at          Charged `o cost        Charged to otne/     Other chariges and

Oescriplfoo                     Ba lance                        Cost                     and expenses                   Accounts                        Addi(lons                  Ending Balance

ucemse -Cagino                           5,261.186 S,261.186



BelleCorporit.'ol..ndSubsldlarlef

Schedule E. lone Torn t}ebi
As at De{embei i I, Z013

(inounii in in-i`de)

F_=to„=:.in:            :;..::       :::       ph9Or,p::     phct::         Pha„rm         6,cO     .+..,a.:.na:7.a:cO.O:a7.Cm6;:nco:a::erj;I::a:      3  „   „C;imf,:LL









Belle  Corporation  and Subsidlarles

I.  Reconciliation o{ Retained  Earnings  Available  for  Dividend  Declaratian
As  a` December 31.  2013

|Amount5 In mousandI|

Un.pproprlated R.I.in.a 6amings co ei D.cert.ber 31, 2ol 2
(Dedch not a`rofl&ble for dividend decloietion)
Effect ol adcctlon Of Roused  PA§  1 9

Unal]orol.riat®d  R®talnod Eamlnas ee dt  December 31.  2012.  ae r.atat.a
Nlct lneom based on the face Of 2013 audlteo tlnenci®t 8tatemcots. es .eDoned
LLeso:  Nan act`Ial/unrealiz®d income cot of I.I

Fnar\co lease aojustlTlems
tntareet  income on limaoce  lease recaivab/a
Day  1  Gem on finance  loaso rocei\raDlo
Ach.al cash .oceip.ve ori I.r\anee  lease
Oopreaalion a( In\reslmeni property under f3riance lease

Gap on fro 8ng
Unroalized forolan o>o>hanoo aem on snortrtem invostmems

(7a4.949t

SS

( 7oC 8so,
3 647  446

(1177   S70\

a 324 4J4)
un 317
(ee 471 ) (2  Sol   .Sol

(946628!
'1  651 )

Add; Won-ctu.I loan.
Dctorr.a tex lrabll.ue. on fin8nee loses rol8Led ediusimen\g
urrealized froicm excharrae less on noa\Ico ra`o rio`eg



Belle Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule I. Key Financial Ratios

As al: December 31, 2013 and 2012

Asset-`oiqultv ratio Total assets over stockholders equ.ity i.56 :  1.00 |S3    1,00

Current oi llauldlty Ratio Cur/ent assets over current I-I Ilties 1.71 :  1.00 18S  -1.00

Debt-to{auitv ratio ln`eies`-b.ar ng debt over slockholdels equ ty 0.29 :  1.00 0 41  .  1  00

Net debt-to-equlty ratio Interest-tiear ng debt less cash and cash equ valents,  HTM  inves`ments  and escJow  fund a.19 :  i.00 01S  I  1.00

over stockholders equ`ty

Interest rate coveraae /atio Earn logs  Before  Interest and  Tales  cweT  interest expel)5e 17.39 : 1,00 6691cO

Return on assets Net ricorne Over ayeraee `O`a assets  durinE{ the  period |T\ 23%

Return on  equity Ne, ocome over average eqil ty dur(nE the perlod 19.7% I                                          314%



BELLE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIAIRIES

PlmlppINE FINANC.IAL REPORTINGj"' `;in  ",.Irk,,
Adol)ted Not NotINTERPRF,TATI0NS

Effective as of December 3 I , 2013 Adopted Applicable

Framework for the PI.eparatlon and Presentation of Financial

/Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Obj ectives and qualitative
characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Managemcn( Commentary /
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS I First-time Adoption of philippine Financial  Reporting /
(Revised) Standards

Amendments to PFRS  I  and FAS 27: Cost of an /Investmeflt in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Efltity or
Associate

Amendments to PFRS  I : Additional Exemptions for /First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS  I : Limited Exemption from /Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS  I : Severe Hyperinflation and /Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS  I : Government Loans /
Amendment to PFRS  I : Meaning of Effective PFRSs

PFRS Z Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and /cancellatiofls

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- /based Payment Transactions

Amendment to T'FRS 2: Definition ofvesting
Conditiori*

PFRS 3(Revised) Business Combinations

Amendmelit to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent /Consideration in a Business Combination*

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint /Arrangements

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts /
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Gurantee Contracts

PFRS S Non¢urrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources /
I.FRS 7 Financial Instruments:  Disclosures /

Amendments to FAS  39 and PFRS 7: Reelassification
ofFinancial Assets

S-I



pHiLlpplNE FINAr`TclAL REpORTING STAN I)ARDs AND
Adopted NotAdopted NotAppticable

INTERPRETATIONS
El.rective as of December 31, 2013

Amendments to FAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification /
ofFinancial Assets -Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS  7: Improving Disclosures about /
F`inancial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures -Transfers of /
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures -Offsetting Not Early Adopted
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PTRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of Not Early Adopted
PFRS 9 and Transition  Disclosures

PFRS 8 Operating Segments /
Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation ofoperaling

Not Early AdoptedSegments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments` Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments Not Early Adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Dale of Not Early Adopted
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS ]0 Consolidated Financial Statements /
Amendments to PFRS  10: Investment Entities Not Early Adopted

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements /
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Not Early Adopted

Amendments to PFRS  12: Investment Entities* Not Early Adopted

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement /
Amendmeflt to PFRS  13: Short-term Receivables and Not Early Adopted
Payables*

Amendmeat to PFRS  13: Portfolio Exception Not Early Adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS1(Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements /
Amendment to FAS  I ; Capital Disclosures /
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS  I : Puttab]e Financial /
Instruments and Obligations Ansing on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS  I : Preseiitation of Items of other
Comprehensive I ncome

PAS2 Inventories

PAS7 Statement of cash Flows /
PAS8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates /

and Errors

PAS 10 Evehts after the Reporting Period /
PAS 11 Construction Contracts /
PAS 12 Income Taxes



PHILIPPI NE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
Adopted NotAdopted NotApplicableINTERPRETATIONS

Effective as of December 31, 2013

Amendment to FAS  12 -Deferred Tax: Recovery of /
UnderlyingAssets

PAS  16 Property, Plant and Equipment /
Amendment to PAS  16: Revaluation Method -

Not Early AdoptedProportionate Restatement o f Accumulated
Depreciation*

FAS 17 Leases /
PAS 18 Revenue /
PAS  19 Employee Benefits /

Amendments to FAS  19: Actuarial Gains and Lo§ses, /
Group Plans and Disclosures

PAS '9(Amended) Employee Benefits /
Amendments to FAS  19: Defined Benefit Plans:

Not Early AdoptedEmployee Contribution*

FAS 20 Accounting for Guvemmenl Grants and Disclusure of
a overnment Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates /
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation /

PAS Z3(Revised) Borrowing Costs /
PAS 24(Revised) Related Party Disclosures /

Amendments to FAS 24: Key Management Persomel Not Early Adopted

FAS 26 Accountj ng and Reporting by Retirement Bencfit Plans /
PAS 27 Cousolidated and Separate Financial Statements /
PAS 27(Ametided) Separate Financ ial Sta(ements

Amendments to FAS 27: II]vcsment Entities Not Early Adopted

PAS 28 Investments in Associates /
PAS 28{Am€nded) Investments in Associates and Joint Vefltures

FAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflatiomry Economies /
PAS 3 I Interests in Joint Ventures /
FAS 32 Financial Iustrurnents : Disclosure and Presentation /

Amendments to FAS 32 and PAS  I : Puttable Financial /
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to FAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to FAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets /
and FinaDcial  Liabilities

Amendments to FAS 32: Offsetting Filianeial Assets
N ot Early Adoptedand Financial Liabilities

I'AS 33 Eamings per Shac

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting /



PHILIPPIN E FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
Adopted NotAdopted NotAppJjcabLeINTERPRETATIONS

EITective as of December 31, 2013

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets /
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount

Not Early Adopted
Disclosures for Non-Firiancial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent /
Assets

PAS 38 Intangible Assets /
Amendments to FAS 38: Revaluation Method -

Not Early AdoptedProportionate Restatement ot` Accumulated
Amortization

PAS 39 Financial  TnstJunents:  Recognition and Measurement /
Amendments to FAS  39:  Transition and [nitial /Recognition ofFjnancial AsseLs and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast lntragroup Transactions

Amendments to FAS 39: The Fair Value Optiofl /
Amendments to PAS  39 and PFRS 4:  Financial /
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to FAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification /
of Finane ial Assets

Amendments to FAS 39 and PFRS 7; Reclassification /
of Financial Assets -Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and /
I'AS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to FAS 39: Eligible lledged Items /
Amendments to FAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and

Not Early Adopted
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

FAS 40 Investment Property /
Amendments to FAS 40: Clarifying the

Not Early Adopted
lnterTelatiouship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when
Classi fying Property as Investment Property or O\rmer-
occupied Property

PAS 4 I AgTiculture



PIIILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
Adopted NotAdopted No,Applical,leINTERPRETATIONS

Effective as of I)ecember 31, 2013

Philippine Interpretations

[FRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and /
Similar Liabilities

'FRIC 2 MembeTs` Share  in Co-operative Entities and Similar /
Instruments

IFRIC 4 Detemining Whether an Arrangemeflt Contains a Lease /
[FRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,

Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

[FRTC 6 Liabilities arising from Particif)ating in a Speciflc /
Market -Waste ElectTical and Electronic Equipment

[FRIC 7 Applying the Restatement ^pproach under PAS 29 /
Financial  Reporting jn Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 /
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Emb edded Derivatives /

Amcndmcnts to Philippine Intcrprela` ion IFRIC-9 and /
FAS 3 9.. Embedded Derivatives

FRTC  10 Interim Financial Reporting and Tmpairmenl /
TFRTC  I I PFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share Transactions /
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements /
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes /
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimuin /

Funding Requirements and their Interaction

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-14, /
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate Not Early Adopted

IFRIC 16 Hedges ofa Net Investment in a Foreign operation /
IFRIC 17 Distributiol]§ of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers /
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing F inancjal Liabilities with Equity /

Instruments

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase ofa Surface /
Mine*

[FRIC 21 Levies (IFRIC 21 ) Not Early Adopted

SIC-7 Introduction of tbe Euro /
SIC-|0 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to /

Operating Activities

SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Puxpose Entities /
Amendment to SIC -12:  Scope of SIC  12 /

SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary /
Contributions by Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives /



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
Adopted NotAdopted NotApplicableINTERPRETATIONS

Effective as of December-3l, 2013

SIC-2S Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity /
or its Shareholders

SIC-27 Evalunting the Substance of Transactions Tnvolving the /Legal Form ofa Lease

SIC.29 Service Concession Anangements: Disclosures /
SIC.3l Reveniue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising /

Services

SIC-32 In(angible Assets -Web  Site Costs /
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